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Statement of the management of responsibility for preparation апd approval of the consolidated financial
statements for the уеаr ended 31 December 2023

Тhе folloчring statement, which must Ье considered together йй the description оf responsibilities of thе auditors contained
in presented auditor's opinion is made for division of responsibilities of the mапаgеmепt'апd the auditors regarding the

consolidated financial statements оf Kazakhstan Stock Exchange JSC and its subsidiaties феrеiпаftеr - Йе Group).

The management of Kazakhstan Stock ExchangeJSC феrеiпаftеr - йе Ехсhапgе, the Соmрапу) shall Ье liаЫе for preparation

of йе consolidated financial statements presenting fairly йе Гrnancial position at йе close of business оп 31 Decembet 202З,

and its fiпапсiаl performance, cash flows and changes in the equity for йе year ended 31 December 2023, uпdеr International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

\Whеп prepating the consolidated financial statements, the Group's mапаgеmепt shall Ье liаЫе for:

о selecting апd applying ап appropriate accounting policy;

. ptesentation оf relevant, rеliаЫе, соmраtаЫе, and чпdеrstапdаЫе information, including information about the

accounting policy;

о providing additional disclosures whеп compliance йth IFRS requirements is insufficient to епаЫе users to understand
the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditioný on the Group's financial position and financid
performance; and

о assessing the Group's ability to сопtiпче as а going concern in йе foreseeable futute.

Тhс Group's management shall Ье liаЫе fоr:

о developing, implementing and ensuring а rеliаые intcrnal control in the Group;

о keeping records in а fоrm alloйng disclosing and explaining йе Groups' transactions, and disclosing at апу date

sufficiently and accurately the financial position of the Gtoup апd ensuring compliance of the financial statements with
IFRS requitements;

о keeping accounting records in line йй йе legislation of the Rерчыiс of kazakhstan;

. инп8 all rеаsопаыу роssiые actions to safeguard йе Group's assets; and

о detecting and preventing ftaud апd ойеr abusive practices.

Тhе consolidated Гtпапсiаl statementý for the уеаr ended 31 DесеmЬеr 2023Ьzуе Ьееп approved for issue Ьу the Group's
management on 26 April 2024.

On behalf of the Мапаgеmепt

А.о s.u. аффьчl
chief Accountant

./
/)*у

26 April

Almaty,
'.!!

.J l

lТhе
the

Mmagement shall mеап hеrе the Мапцеmепt Board of kazakhstan stock Ехсhапgе Jsc, subject to patagraph 2 of сlачsе 4 of Anicle б of фе Law of
Republic of Kbzakhstan "Оп Ьutiпвt мсо,лпtiпg апdjпмсiаt пропiпg".
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lNDEPENDENT AUDlToR,S REPoRT

То the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of Kazakhstan Stock Exchange JSC

Auditor's Report

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying conso[idated financiaI statements of Kazakhstan Stock Exchange JSC
(hereinafter - the Group), which comprise the statement of financial position as at the close of business
оп З,1 DесеmЬеr 2023, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes iп equity and
the statement of cash flows fоr the уеаr then ended and а sчmmаry of significant accounting po[icies
and оthеr explanatory notes.

lп оur opin,ion, the accompanying consolidated financia[ statements рrеsепt fai;,[y, in а[[ material
respects, the financial position of the Grоuр as at the close of business оп З1 DесеmЬеr 2023, and its
financia[ реrfоrmапсе and its cash f[ows for the уеаr then ended in ассоrdапсе with lnternational
FinanciaI Rероrtiпg Standards.

Basis fоr opinion

We conducted оur audit in accordance with lnternational Standards оп Auditing. Оur responsibilities in
ассоrdапсе with those standards аrе further described in the Дчditоr's Responsibf{ities for the Дчdit of
the FiпапсiоI Stotements section of очr rероrt. We аrе independent of the Grочр in ассоrdапсе with the
lпtеrпаtiопоl Ethics Stondords Board fоr Дссоuпtопts' Code of Ethics fоr Professional Дссочпtапts (lESBA
Code) and ethical requirements that аrе rе[ечапt to оuг audit of the financial statements in Kazakhstan,
and we have fu[fi[[ed очr other ethica[ responsibilities in ассоrdапсе with these requirements and the
lESBA Code. We betieve that the audit evidence we hаче obtained is sufficient апd appropriate to рrочidе
а basis fоr очr opinion.

other matter

Мапаgеmепt is responsible fоr оthеr matter. The оthеr matter represents the information in the аппuа[
rероrt, exc[uding the financiaI statements and оur auditor's rероrt thereon. We expect that the approved
аппuаt rероrt witt Ье provided to us after the date of this auditor's rероrt. Очr opinion оп the
consolidated financia[ statements does not арр[у to the оthеr matter, and we wouI[d not express апу
fоrm of аssчrапсе оп that matter.

lп connection with оur audit of the consolidated financia[ statements, \yе аrе required to review the
other information when it is provided to us. During оur review, we review оthеr informaticn fоr material
inconsistencies with the financial statements, очг knowledge obtained during the audit, and оthеr
potentiaI mаtеriа[ misstatements.

Товарищество с ограниченноЙ ответстаенностью "BDo Qazaqstan", зарегистрированное в соответствии с законодательством Республики Казахстан,является участником международного объединения BDo lnternationat LimJted', британско.о общесiвi i оrветственностью, ограниченной гарантией егоучастников, и является частью международной сети неивисимых компаний BDo.

BDo Qazaqstan, а Limited tiabil,ity partлership, registered Uпdеr the taws of the Repub(ic of Kazakhstan, is а mеmЬеr of BDo lпtеrпаtiопаt Limited, а UK соmрапу(imited Ьу 8чаrапtее, апd forms part of the internitionat BDO пеtwоrКЪr iпаерепаЁпt ,еmьеiЪiйs. 
- ' - ' "



lf, upon reviewing the аппuа[ rероrt, we conclude that the other information therein is material[y
misstated, we аrе required to inform those charged with gочеrпапсе.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Gочеrпапсе for the Consolidated Financial
statements

The management is rеsропsiЬ[е fоr the рrераrаtiоп and fair presentation of these conso[idated financia[
statements in accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards and fоr iпtеrпа[ control, as
management determines is necessary to епаЬ[е the ргерагаtiоп of а consolidated financia[ statement
that is free frоm materia[ misstatement, whether due to fraud оr еrrоr.

lп preparing the conso[idated financiaI statements, management is rеsропsiЬ[е fог assessing the Group's
abitity to continue as а going сопсеrп, disclosing, as applicab[e, matters re[ating to going сопсеrп апd
using the going сопсеrп basis of accounting, unless management either intends to [iquidate the Grоuр оr
to cease operations оr has по гealistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with соrроrаtе gочеrпапсе аrе responsible fоr overseeing the Group's conso[idated
financiaI rероrtiпg process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Оur objectives аrе to obtain rеаsопаЬ[е аssurапсе about whether the consolidated financial statements
as а whole аrе frее from materia[ misstatement, whеthеr due to fraud оr еrrоr and to issue ап auditor's
rероrt that inc[udes очr opinion. Reasonab[e assurance is а high level of аssurапсе but is not а guаrапtее
that ап audit conducted in ассоrdапсе with lnternational Standards оп Auditing wi[[ a[ways detect а
material misstatement whеп it exists. Misstatements can аrisе frоm fraud оr еrrоr and аrе considered
materiaI if, individuaIly оr in the aggregate, they cou[d rеаsопаЬtу Ье expected to inf[uence the economic
decisions of users taken based оп these consolidated financial statements.

As а part of ап audit in ассоrdапсе with lnternational Standards оп Auditing, we exercise professional
judgement апd maintain pгofessionaI scepticism throughout the audit. We a[so:

. |dentify and assess the risks of mаtеriаl misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whеthеr due to fraud оr еrrоr, design and реrfоrm audit procedures responsive to those гisks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and аррrорriаtе to provide а basis fоr оur opinion.

The risk of not detecting а material misstatement resu[ting frоm fraud is higher than the one resulting
fгоm еrrоr, as fraud may involve colIusion, forgery, intentionaI omissions, misrepresentations, оr the
override of iпtеrпа[ сопtrоl;

. obtain ап understanding of iпtеrпаl сопtrоl rеlечапt to the audit to design audit рrосеdчrеs that
аrе аррrорriаtе in the circumstances, but not fоr the purpose of expressing ап opinion оп the
effectiveness of the Grоuр's interna[ сопtrоl;

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and re[ated disclosures made Ьу management;

. conclude on the аррrорriаtепеss of management's use of the going сопсеrп basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether а materia[ uncertainty exists re[ated to events оr
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Grочр's abitity to continue as а going сопсеrп. lf we
conclude that а material uncertainty exists, we аrе required to draw attention in очr auditor's rероrt to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements оr, if such disclosures аrе inadequate,
to modify очr opinion. Очr conclusions аrе based оп the audit evidence obtained up to the date of оur
auditor's rероrt. Ноwечеr, future events оr conditions may cause the Grоuр to cease to continue as а
going сопсеrп;

. Eva[uate the очеrа[[ presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
inctuding the disclosures, апd whether the financia[ statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in а mаппеr that achieves fair presentation;

о obtain sufficient аррrорriаtе audit evidence relating to the consolidated financial information of
organizations оr activities within the Grочр to express ап орiпiоп оп the consolidated financial
statements. We аrе responsible fог management, сопtrо[ апd audit of the Grочр. We rеmаiп fu[[y
rеsропsiЬ[е fоr оur audit орiпiоп.



We communicate with those сhаrgеd with соrроrаtе gочеrпапсе rеgаrdiпg, among other matters, the
р[аппеd scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, incIuding апу significant deficiencies
iп iпtеrпаl сопtrоl that we identify during оur audit.

Au

R.K.
Qual ublic of
kazakhstan
Auditor's Qua[ification cate No. МФ -

2000 Ьу the
Quatification Commission of the Auditors' Ваr
for certification of candidate auditors of the
Repubtic of Kazakhstan

0000497 issued оп 18

BDO Qazaqstan LLP
state License of the committee of financia[
сопtrоl of
Republic of
March 2021

the of the
d

to са

R
Director

26 Арrit 2024

LLP

No. 2101
out auditing
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Kazakhstan Stock Ехсhапgе JSC

CONSOLIDЛTED STATEMENT ОF COMPREHENSI\ГE INCOME
for the year ended 31 Decembet 2023

(th о u s ап d Ка7а kb s tап tепgф

Л/оrеs

consolidated

2023 2022

Fее income
Interest income
provision fоr ctedit losses
Net profit /(oss) оп foreign currency transactions
Income frоm investments accounted for in equity mеthоd
other income
Operating income

Operating ехрепsеs

Profit Ьеfоrе cotpotate income tax expenýes

Corporate income tax expenseý

Profit for the year

Othet comprehensive income
Other соtпРrеhепsiче iпсоtzе поt sHbject to ru/амфсаtiоп iп Profit or lоs iп

subMqaeпt Peiodt
Revalued properry, plant апd equipment less tax

Other comptehensive iпсоmе for the year less taxes

Total comprehensive income for the уеаr

5

6

8.|24.582
19.227.800

65.570
(35.797)
(77.794)

16.948

5.716.490
6.432.441

Q82.754)
22.469
34.546
19.474

27.381.309 1,1.942.666

,7

8

(6, 059.908) (3 989.493)

2|.327.40l 7.95з.173

(2. 803.136) 0 134.019)

18.518.265 6.819.154

,tб 80.844 101.698

80.844 101.698

18.599.109 6.920.852

Earnings per share
Basic and diluted (tenge) l7.122,59

Signed and approved for issue on behalf of the Management of Kazakhýtan Stock Exchange JSC:

л.о. aЕ- ь;й;
chief Accountant

26 April

Almaty, Kazakhstan

9 6.з42,04
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kazakhstan stock

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

for the yeaf ended 31Decembet 2023

(th о н s а п d Ка ца kh :tап te пдф

]Vores

consolidated Financial statements

31 DесепЬеt
2023

31 DесепЬеr
2022

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Amounts due Гrоm credit institutions
Revetse REPO
Central сочпtеrраrtу fiпапсiаl assets

Investment secutities
Equity securities at fait value thrочф other comprehensive income

Investments iп the associate
Curtent corporate income tax assets

Deferred corporete income tax essets

Pfopefty, plant апd equipment
IпtапgiЫе assets

Kght-of-use assets

Prepayments
ойеr assets

Total assets

Liabilities
Amounts due to cleating participaлts

Central counterparty financial liabilities

Cutrent corporate income tax liabilities

Deferred corporate income tax liabilities

[,еаsе liabilities
Received advances
other liabilities
Total liabilities

Equity
Authorized capital
Provision fоr revalued PloPerty, plant апd equipment

Reserve fund
Reteined earnings

Total equity
Total liabilities апd equity

10
11

11

12
1з
14
15

72.029.012
2.877,636,749

66.708.762
21.053

107.289
447.709

1.299
2.540.103
7.6з8.342

150.890
434.823

1.055.336

267.855.30з
161.927

35.551.435
,l,| 

;7 69 .454.57 6

31.889.2зб
21.053

125.083
117.3|4

968
1.738.803
1.616.142

185.644.9зз

362.007
815.259

з.208.416.300 12.109.709.106

8

16
17

18
19

20

21,

12

8
22

20

zз
2э
23

284.L89,412
2.877.636.749

213.з|з
365.726
171.670
110.840
488,327

з 12.809.343

11.769.454.576
15.161

з45.з02

90.876
359.034

3.163.181.977 12.083.074.292

4.189.030
246.100

3.878.000
36.920.593

4.189.0з0
183.658

3.170.000

19.092.1zб

45.234.323 26.6э4.814
3.208.416.300 12.109,709.106

Signed and approved fot issue on behalf of the Management of Kazakhstan Stock Exchange JSC:

,1r![llllr
!|

л.о.
Сhаirmап

26 April

Almaty,

Board
ýu.ЩБб
chief Accountant

_.:
'. ппrdя
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Kazakhstan Stock Ехсhапgе JSC consolidated Financial statements

CONSOLIDATED SТЛТЕМЕNТ ОF CI{ANGES IN EQUITY
fot thе yeaf ended 31 Decembet 2023

(th о н sm d Kalakb s tап tепдф

prouisioп for
rcvelued

]Votes
Authoized

capital
ptopetц plaлt
апd еquiрпспt Reseпe rtnd

Retained
еаmiпgs Tota] equity

7!аплаry2022

Рюfit for йе year

Total соmрrеhепsiче iпсоmе for йе yeat

Revaluation оf proprty, рlапt апd equipment

Revaluation reserve depreciation

31 December 2022

Profit Гоr йе par
Total comptehensive iпсоmе for йе yeat

Increase iп reserve fund

Revaluation оf рюрttу, plant and equipment

Revaluation teserve depreciation
Ad|ustTnents of prior priods
31 Decembet 2023

4.1 89,030 90.986 3,170.000 12,26э.946 19.71з.962

6.819.154 6.819.154

6.819.154 6.819.1я
101.698

(9.02о

101.698

zl 9.02 6

4.189.030 183.658 3.170.Ф0 79.092.726 26,6y.8l4

18,518.265 18.518.265

18.518.265 18.518.265

80.844

(17.802)

708.000 (708.fiю)

17.s0;
4ш

80.844

400

4.189.030 и6.700 3.878.000 з6.920,593 45.?34,з2з

Signed and appfoved for issue on behalf of the Management of Kazakhstan Stock Exchange JSC:

ll i!уб

tl It1l_\

А.о
chairman of the

26 Apil2024

Almary, Kazakhstan
!i

lI ilr rч

отчётов

iЗDrэ
ча:а1\7*'i

Для

э
Notet оп Раgеs 543 ilall Ье ап iпhgral Pan of tbBe colsolidaПdfпattcial $аtеtttепts,

,5/a
ii! ýл7lЬбь.кdч"

chief д%очпtапt



чётов

дт.Qо
ч^;д;i,i

kazakhstan stock

CONSOLIDЛTED STATEMENT ОF CASH FLOWS

for the уеш ended 31 Decembet 2023

(tb о а s ап d Kalakb s tап tепgф

Cash flows from opetating activities
Profit before cofporate income tax expenses

AdiuBtments to teconcile profit before corpofate income tar( ехрепsеs and net cash flowB:
provision for credit losses
Dividend iпсоmе
Accrued interest iлсоmе
Amonization оп fiпапсе lease

Depreciation of properq,, plant and equipment and amortization оf iпtапgiЫе assets

Income from interest in the associate

Сhапgев in operatiлg assets апd Пabilities
Net fuotao / (iпmаsе) il ореrаtiц atteb

Reverse REPO
Amounts due from credit institutions
Prepayments
оthеr assets

Net iпmап / (dеа,еаsф iп operaliщliabiliti\
Amounts due to сlеаппg раrtiсiралв
Advances receil,ed
ойеr liabilities

оЬtаiпеd interest
paid interest оп lease

Paid corpotate income tax

Net савh teceipts /фауmепts) in operating activitieB

Саsh flows ftоm inveBting actiйties
Acquisidon of property, plant and equipment
Revenue ftom property, plant алd equipment sold
Acquisition of iпtапфЫс assets

Capitalized costs iл iпtапфЫе asscts

дcquisition of invesuneni securitics lcss receipts from redcmption ofinvestmcnt securities

Net савh outflows ftom investing activities
Net cash used in investing actiйties

Cash {lows ftom financing activities
settlement of fiпапсе lease liabilities
Net саsh flows used in financing activities

Effect of сhапgеs in foteign ехсhапgе rates on cash and cash equil,alents

Effect of expected credit losses оп cash and саsh cquivalents

Net changes in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and саsh equivalents at the beginning of the уеаr
Cash and саsh equivalents at the end of the yeat

Signed and approved for issue оп behalf of the Management of Kazakhstan Stock Exchange JSC:

]Vores 2023

consolidated Fiпапсiаl statement

2022

27.321.407 7.953.17з

7

(65.570)
(з6)

(19.227.800)
60,021

561.763
l7.794

(36,467.982)
|61,928

(89,858)
(и1.643)

(28,б19.931)
22.189

328.636

282.754

(6.4з2.441)

421.995
(34.546)

зl.ээ7.166
(161.927)

212.646
(з69.424)

190.422,з,l7
з9.670

1 69.1 56

665.51 3

(21 4.339)
(82.880)

Qэ.з47.67з)

lб

17

t0

10

2.223.794
(25,244)

(2.945,859) (1.038.243)

(62.986.397) 22з.467.809

(967.335)
6.892

(191.з91)

(з76.1 89)

(121.907)
(12.229.596)

ffi

(40.033)
(40.033)

(5.791.892) 4.2э8.959
7|1,253 (283.146)

(82,210.370) 20з,402.541

267.855,303 64,452.762

185.644.933 267.855.303

36

,,i
л.о.

26 April

Almaq,,

ýu.ф#k* /
ChiefScdбuntant

4
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Kazakhstan Stock Exchange JSC
Notes to the consolidated Financial statements

for the ended 31 2023

(thожапd Ка1аkhstап tепgе utlleM оthеплisе stated)

1. Corporate Information

Kazakhstan Stock Exchange Joint-Stock Company (the Stock Exchange, the Соmрапу) uras

1993 чпdеr thе legislation of the RерчЫiс of Kazakhstan.

Тhе Соmрапу is currendy operating based on а Certificate of State Re-registration of а Legal Entity No. 1952-1910-01-АО
dated 7 Janua ry 2004 issued Ьу the Office of Justice of Bostandyk District of the Department of Justice of йе ciry of Аlmаrу.

Тhе Company's activities iп the securities market are carried очt based оп the folloЙng licenses:

1) license No.4.2.3/1 to carry out activities iп the securities market dated 19July 2012 issued Ьу the Committee for
control and surveillance оf the financial market and financial organizations оf the National Вапk of the Republic оГ

Kazakhstan. Тhе license entitles the holder to carry очt йе following types of activity in the securities market:

. лttлгrgiпg trade iп securities апd other fiпапсiаl instruments;

о cleating of transactions with financial instruments in йе securities market;

2) license No. 4.3.8 to perform ЬапНпg operations in national and foreign currenc), dated 30 January 2020 issued Ьу Йе
Agency of the RерчЫiс of Kazakhsиn for regulation апd development of the financial matket. Тhе license entides the

holder to perform the folloйng ЬапНпg operations:

. to ореп and mапа8е correspondent ассочпts of the banks and organizations саrфпg out particular types оf
banking operations;

. to transfer: to execute orders оf individuals and Iеф entities to рау апd transfer mопеу;

. to ореп апd mапаgе Ьапk accounts of legal entities;

о to аrfапgе for foreign currency ехсhапgе operations, except йе arrangement of ехсhапgе operations with
foreign cuffency in cash,

The legal address of йе Соmрапу is 280 Baizakov St., Nоrй Tower of Almaty Tower Multifunction Complex, Floor 8, city

of Almaty, Al5E2Y0, Republic оf Kazakhstan.

The primary activity of йе stock Ехсhапgе is to organize trade in securities and other Гrпапсiаl insffuments under the

legislation оf the Republic of Kazakhstan.

The related activities of the Stock Exchange include clearing оf transactions Йth financial instruments, setdement оf sPecific
types оf banking operations, provision оf information and ойеr services not prohibited Ьу йе leфslation of йе Republic of
kazakhstan.

Дs of the close of business оп 31 December 2О23 апd 31 December 2022, йе shareholders еасh of чzhоm holds more Йап
5 % of йе Company's issued ordinary shares are stated as follo,ws:

31 Decetnbet 31 DесепЬеt
2023, % 2022, %

shareholders
RSE National Bank of thе Republic of Kazakhstan
Moscow Stock Exchange MICEX-RTS Public Joint-Stock Company
Kommesk-Omir Insurance Соmрапу J SC
Halyk Bank of Kazakhstan JSC
Roza Sharipbayevna Shчаtауеча
Others Qndividually holding less than 5 7о)

Total

Under clause 2 of Article 84 of the law of the Republic of Kazakhstan "Оп thе Mcuritie: паrkеt" (the Law), ап interest of each
shareholder of йе trading operator together with its afГfiates са(шоt exceed 20 % of йе total issued shares, except where а

shareholder is the National Bank оf the Republic of Kazakhstan (the NBRK).

{ilýтл,1
аА:.1Ъ:7/-,;

цлл
Ф7оы ,ber

46,99
13.10

7.64
6.79
5.02

20.46

46.99
13.10
7.64
6.79
5.02

20.46
100.00 100.00
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Notes to the consolidated Financial statements
kazakhstan stock for the year cnded 31

(thоаsапd Каlаkhstап tепgе ltпhss otheпuise stated)

1_. CorporateInformation(continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2023 zпd 31 December 2022, йе malor shareholder апd йе
Соmрапу is the NBRK.

2023

QAZДQSTAN
лля

the

ТЪеsе consolidated financial statements include financial statements of йе Соmрапу and the folloйng subsidiary феrеiпаftеr
- the Group):

rntercst/votes, Ой

It{atne Countty of Ьusiлеss Туре of actiuity 31 Decetnbet 2023 31 Decelnbet 2022

I3SE Cleating Centre JSC

Other auxiliary activities
in the field of financial

Republic оf Kazakhstan services ойеr йап
insurance and репsiоп

pfovlsron

100 100

Оп 21 June 2022, KASE Clearing Centre JSC феrеiпаftеr referred to as йе Соmрапу) was tфstefed, following the

transformation of eTrade.kz LLP into а ioint-stock соmрапу. Оп 19 October 2022, tbe state rфstration of the issue

prospectus of the Company's ordinary shares vas effected. As оf 31 Decembet 2022, tlг'e Exchange paid up 55 ordinary shares
of the Соmрапу, йth а par value of 3,252,210 tепgе per share. During 202З, thе Ехсhапgе paid up 476 ordinary shares of the

Соmрапу, йth а par value of 3,252,270 tenge per share. As of 31 Decembet 202З, the Соmрапу owned 531 shares (100 %

of оrdiпаry shares) iп KASE Clearing CentreJSC.

KASE Clearing Centre JSC was estaЫished in accordance with йе Ехсhапgе Development Strateg1, for 2022-2024 iп order
to develop the institution of the central counterparty as а key infrastructural element. In accordance Йth the Cooperation
Agteement Ьемееп the Exchange апd the Соmрапу, from Septemb et 202З, KASE Cleating Centre JSC carries очt cleating
setdcments and pefforms functions as а central counterparty fоr ttansactions Йth individual financial instfuments in individual
ехсhапgе markets (today, these functioný are pefrormed Ьу йе Соmрапу iп the stock market). The goal of Йis proiect is to
reduce йе tisks of market participants, reduce tfansaction costs of participants through сrоss-mафпiпg and netting.

Тhе information about йе associate as оf 31 December 202З апd 31 December 2022 is given below:

31 DесеtпЬеr 2023 31 Decetnber 2022
contribution conttibution to

rлteteýt/Voteý, to authorized rnterest/Voteý, authotized
% capital % capitalIVatne

Countty of
Ьusiлеss Туре of actiuity

RTRS LLP kazakhstan Leasc services 50 135.000 135.000

135.000 135.000

Iп2023, the total loss of RTRS LLP amounted to (35.589) thousand tcnge, thc Exchangc's loss роrtiоп amounted to (17.794)

thousand tenge (in 2022: tbe total profit of 69.092 thousand tenge). The carrying amount of investment in thе associate as оf
31 December 2023 totalled 107.289 thousand tenge (as of 31 December 2022:125.083 thousand tenge).

50
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kazakhstan stock SC

(thоампd Ка7аkhstап tепде uпtеss otheпuise stated)

2, Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements

Notes to the consolidated Fiпапсiаl statements
for the ended 31 December 2023

General part

These consolidated

Цля
отчётов

financial statements have Ьееп ptepated чпdеr International Financial Reporting Standards

These consolidated financial statements have Ьееп prepared оп the actual cost accounting basis, except for фе principle
specified iп thе Sфпфсапt АссоапtiпgРоliсiеr sectlon. For instance, the financial assets at fair чаlче through other comprehensive
income and property, plant and equipment (gtoups: building, land, transport vehicles) were measured at fair чаIче.

These consolidated fiпапсiаl statements are presented in йousand Kazakhstan tenges (tenge), except earnings pet share, unless
otherwise stated.

Тhеsе consolidated financial statements hаче been prepared based оп the assumptioл that the Gtoup is а going сопсеrп and

will сопtiпче as а going сопсеrп in the fоrеsееаЫе future.

Effect of foteign economic factots

Iп 2023, markets were impacted Ьу vatious geopolitical and economic factors that limited Йе global economic recovery. In
йе second half of 202З, mапу countries experienced а decrease in inflation rates. As а result, it Ьесаmе роssiЫе for central
banks in а пчmЬеr of countries to lo.yer interest rates. At йе same time, given йе positive расе of the есопоmу, central banks
of the world's leading economies did not dare to reduce interest rates considering the current inflation levels to Ье Ыgh enough
to end restrictive monetary policy. Accotding to the consensus, Йе ttansition of the world's economies ftom Йе stage оf
recession to the stage оf gtowй is expected in the second hal{ of 2024, апd inflation rates will continue to decline throughout
2024.

I:n2О2З, Kazakhstan demonstrated GDP growй of 5.1 oh. The leading industries wefe construction (13.3 7о), trade (113 Оа

and соmmчпiсаtiопs Q.15 И.At the same time, the US GDP growth was 3.1 %о, China's GDP - 5.2 0h, апd йе Russian
Federation's GDP - 3.6 %.

Аппчаl inflation in Kazakhstan in 2023 decreased and at йе епd of йе year amounted to 9.8 % compared to tbe 2022

indicator of 20.З 0h.

At the Ьефппiпg оf 202З, the NBRK base rate was at 16.75 7о per аппчm, Dudng the уеаr, the base fate was reduced thtee

times and Ьу the end of 2023 it аmочпtеd to 15.75 %о per аппчm.

At йе епd оf 202З, йе Kazakhstan Tenge stfengthened Ьу 1.7 % against the US dollar and Йе rate was 454.56 tenge per US
dollar Ьу the end оf the year.

At йе end оf 2023, йе current account of йе Ьаlапсе of payments was in deficit and amounted to 3.3 billion US dollars due

to the deterioration of the trade balance and balance of services. Exports of goods decreased Ьу 7.0 % to 78.7 billion US
dollars. Imports оf goods incrcased Ьу 20.0 ohto 61.2 billion US dollars. Iп йis regard, Йе trade balance surplus decreased

Ьу 52.0 %о comparcd to 2022 and amounted to 17.5 billion US dollars. ТЫs decrease was caused Ьу Йе fall iп oil prices in Йе
first half of 2023.

The year 2023 tutned out to Ье fачочrаЫе fоr Kazakhstan's stock market due to а decrease in the аппчаl inflation rate

stabilization of markets aftcr the levelling of external economic shocks, and improvement in mactoeconomic indicators.

At thc end of 2023, thc total trading volume in all markets of the Exchange increased Ьу 57 % compared to 2022 to 410.7
trillion tenge and became а record iп the Ыstory of thе Exchange. The KASE index updated its Ыstorical maximum Ьу
ЫеаНпg the mark of 4 йousand points and iп 2023 gtew Ьу 29 Оh to 4,187.38 points.

The Соmрапу's mапаgеmепt believes йаt the events and external factors desctibed above will not hаче а material impact оп
the Company's going concern. Тhе Company's mапаgеmепt monitors both current changes in the economic and political
siruation in the international arena and any sanctions risks, and takes mcasures necessary to maintain йе sustainabilrry and
development of the Соmрапу's business iп the near future.

The Company's management believes йаt the events and external factors described above чrill not have а material impact оп
the Company's going сопсеrп. Тhе Company's management monitors Ьоth current changes in the economic and political
situation in the international аrепа and апу sanctions risks, and takes measures песеssаrу to maintain the sustainability and
development of the Company's business in the пеаr fчtчrе.
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kazakhstan stock

(thoHsaпd Каlаkhstап tепgе апlеss otbeпuise stated)

2. Basis of Prepafation of the Financial Statements (continued)

Estimation uncettainty

Notes to the consolidated Financial statements
for the ended 31 D 202з

ДИя
отчётов

То the extent that information has Ьееп ачаilаЫе as of 31 December 202З, tbe Group has reported revised estimates of
expected futute cash flows whеп estimating ECLs, measuring the fait value of financial instruments.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

consoпdation basis

Subsidiaries, i.e. entities controlled Ьу йе Group are consolidated. Control is exercised whеп Йе Group is exposed to risk of
changes iп, or has the right to receive, income from participation in the investee апd has Йе ability to influence Йis income
through the exetcise of its power over йе investee. In particular, йе Group controls ап investee only if Йе folloЙng
conditions are met:

. the Group has powers with ап investee (i.e. existing rights ensuring current ability to mапаgе significant activities of
an investee);

. the Group is exposed to the tisk of changes in income from ап interest iп ап investee or rights to receive such
iпсоmе; and

. the Group сап exercise its powers йй respect to ап investee to influence йе amount of income.

It is generally assumed that the majority of voting tiфts result iп control. То support Йis presumption, and if the Group has

less thап а malority оf voting or similar rights over an investee, йе Group considers all relevant facts апd circumstances iп
assessing whethet it has power очеf that investee:

. аgrееmепtФ) йй other voting rights holders in thе investee;

. rights under ойеr agreements; and
1 voting rights and potential voting rights held Ьу the Group.

Consolidation of subsidiaries commences оп the date control is transferred to the Group and terminates on the date control
ceases. All intra-gtoup transactions, balances апd unrealized gains оп sцсh transactions are excluded in full; unrealized losses

are also cxcluded unless the transaction рrойdеs evidence of ап impairment of the asset transferred. If necessary, thе

accounting policies оf subsidiaries are amended to bring them iп line ryith those оf the Group.

А сhапgе in ownership interest in а subsidiary йthочt а loss оf conttol is ассочпtеd for as ап equity transaction. А subsidiary's
losses ate charged to non-controlling intetests even iftЫs results in а negative balance,

If thе Group loses control over а subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary (including апу related

goodwill), the carrying amount оf minority interests, accumulated foreign exchange differences recognized in equiý;
recognizes the fair value of thе consideration received, the fair value of the remaining investment, and any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss; reclassifies the parent's share of соmропепts previously recognized in оЙеr comprehensive income
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the consolidated Financial statements
for the ended 31 Decembet 2023Kazakhstan Stock Ехсhапgе JSC

(thоимпd Ка1аkhstап tепgе uпlеss othenuise stated)

)
3, SignificantAccountingPolicies (continued)

Adoption of пеw IFRS, IFRS interpretations and amendments to IFRS
l4ля

отчётов

The accounting principles adopted iп йе preparation of these fiпапсiаl statements аrе consistent with those applied in the

preparation of the consolidated fiпапсiаl ýtatements оf the Group fоr the уеаr ended 31 December 2022, except for the

principles estaЫished Ьу new IFRS and IFRS interpretations effective ftom 1 January 202З. Тhе Gtoup has поt ptematurely
adopted апу other IFRS, amendments апd interpretations to IFRS that have been issued but are not yet effective.

The Group applied the following amendments to IFRS for the first time in 2023, which did поt affect its consolidated financial
statements.

Amendment to IFRS 17 - Insurance Conttacts

The amendment to IFRS 17 Iпмrапсе Сопtrасlr are puЫished in December 2021 апd effective for the reporting periods

beginning оп ot after 1 Janlaty 2023.

This standard replaces IFRS 4 Iпмtrапсе Сопtrасtl,wысh счrrепdу allows for а wide range of accounting ptactices for insurance

contracts. IFRS 17 Iпмrаwе Coпtracts wt]| fundamentally change йе way iп which insurance companies and gtoups operating

in the insutance business treat insurance and investment contracts with discretionary participation features,

The requirements of IFRS 17 include elements of the Eutopean Solvency II standard offering а conceptually пеw approach

to assessing solvency, taНng into account the individual risks inherent in а particular insurance соmРапу.

Iп2023, the statements чпdеr IFRS 17 чrill Ье provided in parallel with IFRS 4.

То exclude manipulation and the impact of чпrеаsопаЫе changes in insurance liabilities оп the prudential standards of
insurance otganizations, regulatory statementý remain чпсhапgеd.

This amendment had по impact оп the conýolidated fiпапсiаl statements of thе Group.

Дmепdmепt to IAS 8 - Definition of Accounting Estimates (illustrations of changes in accounting policies and

accounting estimates)

The IдS Board amends IAS 8 to dеГrпе accounting estimates as "monetary amounts in fiпапсiаl statements that are subiect to

measurement uncertainty't,

тhе accounting policies mау require items iп the financial statements to Ье measured in а mannef that involves estimation

uncertainty, That is, the accounting policies mау require measuring such items in monetaý, amounts йаt саппоt Ье direcdy

оьsеrчаые Ьчt must Ье measured.

In йis case, йе епtiry makes ап accounting estimate to асЫече Йе goal set iп Йе accounting policy. МаНпg accounting

eýtimates involves the use of iudgments or assumptions based оп йе latest rеliаые information ачаilаые.

Дmепdmепt to IAS 12 - Income Тах - Defetred Тах Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising from а Single
Transaction

Amendments to IAS 1,2 Iпcottle Тах published in Мау 2021 апd effective for the reporting periods beginning оп or after 1

Jаплъry 2023,

The Board introduced these Amendments to rеdчсе discrepancics in hоw entities account for deferred tax оп tfansactions
and events, such as leases and decommissioning liabilities, йаt result in initial recognition of both assets and liabilities.

The amendments паrrоw йе scope of the exceptions to initial recognition uпdеr IAS 12 so that the exception no longer
applies to transactions that фче rise to equal tахаЫе and dеdчсtiЫе temporary differences.

Тhе amendments also clarify that the deduction for tax purposes of paymentý to ýetde liabilities is а matter of judgment (in
accordance йth аррliсаЫе tax laws) as to whether such deductions are consistent йй tax purposes for liabilities recognized
in йе financial statements (апd interest expense) or related asset (and iпterest expense).

ТЫs iudgment is important in determining whether апу temporary differences exist at the initial recognition of ап asset and
liability.

This amendment had по impact оп the consolidated fiпапсiаl statements of the Group.
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(thошапd Kalakbttaп tепgе uпlем otbeпuise ttated)

3. SignificantAccountingPolicies (continued)

Adoption of nerм IFRS, IFRS interpretations and amendments to IFRS (continued)

Notes to the consolidated Fiпапсiаl statements
for the vear ended 31 2023

F Г.r Еъr-ъ.
" _,, l.' .l
Ч.,,:'дЪs|r,.,j

отчёто в

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements, IFRS Practice Statement No. 2 Маkiпg MateialiЦ JнdgеtzепК

Тhе IAS Board issued amendments to IAS 1 determining that ап entity should disclose material information about accounting
policies: Тhе information аЬочt accounting policies is material if йis information, considered iп conlunction йth other
information included in tbe entity's financial statementý, сап reasonably Ье expected to iпflчепсе the decisions made Ьу
primary users оf general-purpose financial statementý based оп those financial statements.

The information about accounting policies that relates to immaterial ttansactions, other eventý ot conditions is immaterial and
is not requited to Ье disclosed. Howevef, information about accounting policies mау Ье material because of the паtчrе оf the

transactions or other events or conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not all information about accounting
policies that relates to material ttanýactions, other events or conditions is material.

Ап entity shall disclose, йth material information about its accounting policies or as part of other notes, the information about

iudgments, other than йose related to estimates, that were made Ьу mапаgеmепt in applying the entity's accounting policies
апd that had йе most significant impact оп the amounts recognized in the financial statements.

This amendment allows thе Group disclosing iп its consolidated Гrпапсiаl statements material information about accounting

policies rather than significant accounting policies as requited prior to the amendment.

Amendment to IAS 12 - International Тах Reform - PiЦat Two Model Rules

In December 2021, tkre OECD puЫished its Pillar 2 Model Rules according to which the large multinational companies will
Ье taxed at а minimum rate of 15 %о.

More than'l35 countries and jurisdictions representing more thап 90 % of global GDP hаче agteed to Йе Pillar 2 Model
Rules.

The IAS Board took immediate action to respond to stakeholder concerns about Йе uncertainty surrounding deferred tax

accounting arising from the application of the rules.

Amendments to IAS 12 will introduce:
. temporary exception for accounting for defered taxes arising in jurisdictions applying global tax rцlеs. Тыs чill

help to ensure comparability of the financial statements and simpliý, compliance йЙ regulations;

. tafgeted disclosure tequirements to help investors to understand better йе impact оп an entity of пеw income

tax requirements, particularly befote lефslаtiоп imposing such requirementý соmеý into force.

This аmепdmепt had по impact оп the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

For thе annual periods beginning оп or after 1 January 2024, dte folloйng йll apply:

о Lease liabilities in а Sale and Leaseback (Amendmentý to IFRS 16 Leases);

о Classification of Liabifities as Curtent and Non-current (Amendments to IAS 7 Ptesentation of FiпапсiаI
Statements)i

о Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (Amendmentý to |bS 1 Рrкепtаtiоп of Fiпапсiаl Stаtепепфi

. Supplier Fiпапсе Arrangements (Amendments to IAS 7 Statetzleпt of Cath Flоws апd IFRS 7 Fiпапсiаl Iпstпrпепts:

DiMloMrel);

о Lack of Exchangeability (Amendments to IAS 27 The Еffесts of Chaпges iп Forcign Ехсhапgе Rates),

Тhе Соmрапу did not apply prematurely nerv IFRS, IFRS interpretations and amendmentý to IFRS specified above.
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Kazakhstan Stock Ехсhапgе JSC
Notes to the consolidated Financial statements

fоr the year ended 31 Decembet 2023

(thолlsапd Ka1akhstat tепgе uпhss оthепаisе stated)

3. SignificantAccountingPolicies (continued)

Fair value meaýurement

!БDо:{-_t2л;дQ5гl,/,/
Для

отчётов

Тhе Group measufes financial instruments at fair value йrочgh profit or loss ffYPL) and fair value through оЙеr
comprehensive income (FVОСD, and sчсh поп-fiпапсiаl assets as property, plant and eqЙpment (groups: building, land,
tfansport vehicles) at fair value at еасh reporting date.

Fair value is а price, which wочld Ье received at the sale оГ ап asset or paid at the transfer of а liability in the course of the

<rrdinary transaction Ьемееп the market participants at the measurement date. Measurement о{ а fait value assumes that а
transaction is carried очt to sell ап asset or to transfer а liability:

о in the market, vысh is principal for йаt asset or liability; or
о iп the аьsепсе of the principal market, in йе market that is the most advantageous for that asset or liability.

The Group must have access to йе principal or the most advantageous market. The fair чаlче of ап asset or liabiliry is

measured using assumptions, wЫсh would Ье used Ьу йе market participants whеп fixing а price for ап asset or liability

рrойdеd йаt the market participants act in their best economic interests. Measurement of а поп-fiпапсiаl asset at fair value

considers ап abiliry of а market participant to generate economic beneftts either Ьу using an asset in the best and the most

effective mannet of as а result of its sale to another market participant, ,яЫсh will чsе that asset in the best and the most

effective mаппеt.

The Group uses such valuation models, which are ассерtаые in the existing circumstances and for which the data sufficient

for measurement at fair value is ачаilаЫе, and using as mчсh as роssiЫе appropriate observable inputs and using minimally
поп-оьsеrчаые inputs. All assets and liabilities measured in йе financial statements at fair value or the fair value of wысh is

disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are classified undet йе fair value hierarchy described below based оп inPuts

оf йе lowest level, rvЫсh are significant for measurement at fair value in general:

о Level 1 _ quoted (unadiusted) prices in active matkets for identical assets and liabilities;

о Level 2 - valuation models in rvысh inputs significant for measurement at fair value relating to the lower level of the

Ыerarchy ate direcd1, or indirectly оЬsеrчаЫе in the market;

о Level 3 - valuation models iп lvысh inputs significant for measurement at fair value relating to thc lowet level of the

Ыerarchy are not оЬsеrчаЫе in йе market.

In case оГ assets and liabilities, wЫсh are revalued in йе consolidated financial statements from time to time, the Group
determines whеthеr йеу are requited to Ье transferred Ьемееп йе Ыerarchy levels wiй analysing афп the classification

фаsеd оП inputs оГ йе lowest level, rvhich are significant for measurement at fair value iп general) at йе end оf еасh reporting

period.
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Kazakhstan Stock Exchange JSC
Notes to thе conso[dated Financial statements

fоr thе year ended 31 December 2023

(thоаsапd Kalakhstaп tепgе uпlеss othenuise stated)

3, SignificantAccountingPolicies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities

Initia| recognition

Rесоgпitiоп date

i Г] лъ,.-ъ.\_;1J,^ _i

Q:1,,\а ,т., ,;

от.;ётов

All regular purchases and sales of financial assets and liabilities аrе recognised on the tfade date i.e. the date that the Group
commits to purchase the asset or liability. Regular purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets and liabilities
that require delivery of assets and liabilities йthiп the petiod generally estaЫished Ьу tegulation or convention iп the

marketplace.

Initial tneasutetnent

Тhе classification оf financial instruments at initial recognition depends оп their contractual terms and the business model for
managing the instruments. Financial instruments are initially measuted at their fair чаlче and, except in the case of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at fait value through profit or loss ff\rPl,), transaction costs are added to.

Fiпапсiаl aMett апd fпапсiаl liabilitiet плеамrеtпепt categoies

The Group classifies all of its financial assets based оп йе business model for mапфпg the assets and йе asýet's conffactual
terms, measured at eiйer:

о amoftised cost;
о FVOCI; or
. FVPL.

Тhе Group classifies and measures its derivative and trading poftfolio at FVPL. Тhе Group mау designate at its discretion йе
financial instruments at FVPL if so doing eliminates or significand1, reduces measurement or recognition inconsistencies.

Financial liabilities, ойеr йап loan commitments and financial guafantees, are measured at amortised cost or FVРL when
they are held fot trading and derivative instruments or the fair value designation is applied at discretion of the entity.

Аrполпtl fuеfrоп credit iпstiПttioпt, iпuеsttпепt secttiti+ at aпorti4,ed со$

Тhе Group only measures amounts dче frоm credit institutions and ойеr financial investments at amortised cost if Ьой of
thc fоllойпg conditions are met:

о the financial aýset iý held йtып а business model to hold financial asýets to collect contfactцal cash flows; and

. the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise оп specified dates to cash flows йаt are solely payments of
principal апd interest оп the principal аmочпt outstanding (SPPD.

тhе dctails of these conditions are oudined below,

1z



kazakhstan stock

(thожапd Ka4akhstaп tеrgе апlеss othenuise stated)

3. SignificantAccountingPolicies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Notes to the consolidated Financial statements
for the year ended 31 Decembet 2023с

/ цГ,
||r, \

_l

отчётов

в utiпеst tпоdеl arre$пeпt

Тhе Group determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages gfoups of financial assets to achieve
its business objective.

ТЪе Gtoup's business model is based on оЬsеrvаЫе factors sчсh as:

о how the performance of the business model and the financial assets held йthiп йаt business model are evaluated
and reported to йе entitl"s key management personnel;

. the risks that affect йе perfotmance of the business model (and йе financial assets held йtып йаt business model)
and, in particular, йе way those risks are managed;

о hоw managers of the business ate compensated (for example, whether the compensation is based оп the fair чаlче
оf йе assets managed or оп йе сопtrасtцаl cash flows collected);

о йе expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aýpects of the Group's business model
assessment.

If cash flows after initial recognition are realised in а way that is different frоm the Group's original expectations, the Gtoup
does not change the classification of йе remaining financial assets held iл that business model but incorporates such
information when assessing newly oriфnated or newly putchased financial assets going forward.

Solel1 раlrпепt oJpiпcipal апd iпtеп$ tett (SPPI te$)

As the second step of its classification process, the Group assesses йе сопtrасtцаl tetms of financial asset to identify whe йеr
the conttactual cash flows from ап asset meet йе sppl test.

'Principal' fоr this test is defined as the fair чаlче оf the financial asset at initial recognition and ma1, сhапgе over the life of
the financial asset (for example, if there afc repayments of principal оr amortisation of the premium/discount).

Тhе most significant elements of interest wiйin а lending arrangement are q?ically йе consideration for йе time value of
mопеу and credit risk. То cafry оцt the SPPI test, the Group applies judgement and considers relevant factors sчсh as Йе
счrrепсу in wЫсh йе financial asset is denominated and the period for wЫсh йе interest rate is set.

In contrast, contractual tetms йаt introduce а more than пеgliфЫе exposufe to risks or volatility in thе сопtrасtчаl cash flows
that are unrelated to а basic lending arrangement do not give rise to contractual cash flows that are solely payments оf principal
and interest оп йе amount outstanding. In sчсh cases, the financial asset is required to Ье measured at FVРL.

Equill iпtttvtпotfi at FVOCI

Upon initial recognition, the Group occasionally elects to classiý, irrечосаЫу some of its equity investments as equiry
instruments at FVOCI whеп they meet йе deГmition of equity under IAS 32 Fiпапсiаl lп$п,tttлепft: Prneltatioп ме not held for
trading. Sчсh classification is determined оп ап instrument-by-instrument baýis.

Gains and losses оп these equity instruments are печеr reclassiГted to profit ot loss. Diйdends are recognised in рrоГrt or loss
as other income whеп the right оf the payment has Ьееп established, except whеп the Group benefits from such proceeds as

а rесочеrу оf part of the cost of the instrument, iп wЫсh case, such gains are recorded iп офеr comprehensive income. Equity
instruments at FVOCI аrе not subiect to ап impairment asseýýment. Uроп disposal of these instruments, the accumulated

rcvaluation feservc is transferred to rctaincd earnings.
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(thоиsапd Ка1аkh$ап tепgе нпlеss оthепаisе stated)

3. SignificantAccountingPolicies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Reclassilication of frпапсiа| aýsets апd aabilities

Notes to the consolidated Financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023

QАZдQs T/.1.1

Для
отчётов

Тhе Group does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional

circumstances in wысh the Group changes the business model for mапфпg financial assets. Financial liabilities are never

reclassified. Iп 2О2З, the Group did not reclassi$, апу оf its financial assets and liabilities,

Cash and cash equivalents

cash and cash equivalents consist оf cash оп hand, cash at NBRK and amounts dче from credit institutions йаt mаturе

within ninety days of the date of origination and are free from conttactual епсчmЫапсеs.

Reputchase and revetse teputchase agfeementý and securities lending

Securities sale and repurchase agteements ("REPOs') are treated as secured financing transactions. Securities sold under
REPO agreements are retained in the consolidated statement of financial position and, in саýе the ttansferee has Йе right Ьу

contract or custom to sell or surcharge them, reclassified as securities pledged чпdеr REPO agteements. The corresponding
liabiliry is presented as REPO transactions iп the consolidated statement of financial position. Secutities purchased undet
agreements to resell ("teverse REPO') are recotded as reverse REPO in йе consolidated statement оf financial position. Тhе
difference Ьемееп sale and repurchase price is treated as interest rечепче and accrued over the life of REPO agteements

using the effective interest method.

Securities lепt to counterparties are retained iп the consolidated statement оf fiпапсiаl position. Securities borrowed are not

recordcd in the consolidated statement of financial position, unless йеsе are sold to Йird parties. In tЫs case the purchase

and sale transaction is recorded in Йе consolidated statement of comprehensive iпсоmе. Тhе obligation to fеtцrп them is

rccorded at fair value as а trading liability.

Financial derivatives

In the поrmаl coursc оf business, the Group uscs various financial derivatives (including futurcs, Гorwards, swaps and options)

in the foreign exchange and capital markets. Тъеsе Гtпапсiаl instruments are held for trading апd are initially recorded at Гаir

value. Fait value is determined based on market quotations or valuation models based оп the current market and contract

value огthе televant underlying instruments апd other factors. Fiпапсiдl derivatives v,riй а positive Гаir value мс recorded as

aSSetS, \yhile those with а negative fair value are recorded as liabi]ities. Gains and losses оп these instruments are recognized

in thе consolidated statement of comprehensive income as net gains/Qosses) оп trading securities or net gains/(osses) оп

foreign ехсhапgе operations (trading operations), subiect to а type оf financial instrument.

Offsetting of financial instrumentý

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net аmочпt is rеропеd in the consolidated statement of fiпапсiаl position

rvhen there is а legally епfоrсеаЫе right to set off йе recognised аmоuпts and there is ап intention to setde оп а net basis, or

to dispose of thе asset and settle йе liability simultaneously. Ап offsettiпg right must not Ье Pteconditioned Ьу а future event

and must have а legal force at all circumstances:

о йе normal coutse of business;

. the event ofdefault; and

. the event of insolvency оr bankruptcy of йе entity апd all of the counterparties.

These conditions аrе поt genetally met in master netting agteements, and йе related assets and liabilities аrе presented gToss

in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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for the year ended 31 Decembи 2023

(thollsaпd Каlаkhrtап terlge ltпless оthепuisе stated)

3. SignificantAccountingPolicies (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

.Fiпапсiаl assets

отчётов

Д financial asset (of ,where аррliсаЫе а part of а financial asset or part of а gfoup оf similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised in the statement оf financial position when:

. the rights to teceive cash flows frоm the asset have expired;

. the Group hаs transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or assumed the obligation to transfer received

саsh in full without material delay to а йird party under а "pass-Йrough" аrrапgеmепt; and

. the Group either (а) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of йе asset, or ф) has пеiйеr transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of фе asset but has transferred control of йе asset.

where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from ап asset апd has пеiйеr transferred nor retained

substantially all the dsks and rewards of йе asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent оf
the Group's continuing involvement in йе asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of а guarantee оvеr the

transferred asset is measured at йе lower of the original саrфпg amount оf the asset and the mахimчm amouflt of
consideration that the Group could Ье required to repay. ý7hеrе continuing involvement takes the form о f а wtitten апd / ot
purchased option (including а cash-setded option or similar instrument) оп the transferred asset, the extent оГ the Group's
continuing involvement is the аmочпt of the transferred asset that йе Group mау repurchase, except that in the case of а

written put option (including а cash-setded option ot similar instrument) оп an asýet measured at fair value. Iп йis case, the

extent of the Group's continuing involvement is limited to the lо,й/еr of the fair value of the transferred asset and the option
exercise price.

Vпfu-ф

FiпапсiаI assets ме wtitten off either partiall1, or in their entirery only whеп Йе Group has stopped pursuing Йе recovery. If
йс amount to Ье written оff is gteater than йе accumulated рrоЙsiоп for impairment, the difference is first treated as ап

addition to йе provision йat is йеп applied against the gross саrфпg amount. Апу subsequent tecoveries are credited to

рrойsiоп for credit losses. А write-off constitutes а detecognition event,

Fiпапсiаl Iiabilities

А financial liability is derecognised when the оЫigаtiоп under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

'ýfhеrе ап existing financial liabiliry is replaced Ьу another ftom йе same lender оп substantially diГferent tefms or Йе terms

of ап existing liability are substantially modified, sчсh ап exchange or modification is treated as а derecognition оf the original
liability and the recognition оf а пе,w liability, and the difference in йе respective саrфпg amounts is recognised iп profit or
loss.
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(thouMrld Ka1akbstaп tепgе шlех otbeпuise stated)

3. SignificantAccountingPolicies (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities (continued) стчётов

Lease

Тhе Group applies IFRS 16 I-eatet to account for leases.

At the time of entering into а contract, the Group assesses whether the contract is а lease or whether it contains elements оГ
а lease. That is to say, the Group determines whether а contract conveys йе фht to contfol the use of ап identiГred asset fot
а specified period оf time iп ехсhапgе Гоr consideration.

Group as а lessee

Тhе Group applies а uniform approach to the recognition and measurement оf all leases, except for short-term leases апd
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognizes lease liabilities in relation to lease paymentý and right-of-use assets, which
repreýent the right to use the underlying assets. The Group has ап office premise lease contract and, having considered the
terms of the lease, the Group has concluded that it is necessary to recognize lease assets and liabilities in accordance with
IFRS 16. The Group's weighted average incremental Ьоrrойпg rate applied to lease liabilities was 15.5 %.

The Group recognizes right-of-use assets at the inception date of the lease (i.e. the date оп which thе undetlying asset becomes
ачаilаЫе for use). Kght-of-use aýsetý are measured at original cost less accumulated amortization апd accumulated impairment
losses, adiusted fot revaluation оf lease liabilities. The original cost of right-of-use assets includes the аmочпt of lease liabilities
recognized, initial direct costs incurred and lease payments made оп or before the inception date оf the lease. If the lease
transfers ownetsЫp оf the undetlying asset to the Group Ьеfоrе the end of the lease term, оr if йе original cost of the right-
of-use asset teflects the Group's intention to exercise the call option, the Group amortizes the right-of-use asset from the
inception date of the lease to the end of the useful life of the underlying asset. Oйefý/ise, the Grочр amottizes йе righbof-
use asset from the lease inception date to the earlier of the епd о[ Йе useful life of the right-of-use asset ot the expiration date
оf the lease term.

Right-of-use assets are also tested fot impairment.

Fоr short-term leases or leases in wЫсh the underlying asset is оf lorv value, the Group recognizes lease рауmепts as ап
expense either оп а straight-line basis over йе lease tefm or using апоthеr ýystematic аррrоасh. The Gtoup uses а difГetent
systematic approach if йаt approach better teflects йе benefit stnrcture.

Gtoup as а lessot

The Group classifies еасh ofits leases as opefating leases or fiпапсе leases.

А lease is classified as а finance lease if it involves the transfer of substantially all the risks and rewards of оwпеrsЫр of йе
underlymg asset. А lease is classified as ап operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
оwпеrsЫр of the underlying asset.

Lease classification is made at the date of соmmепсеmепt of the lease relationship and is re-evaluated only in the cvent of а

modification of the lease contract. Changes iп estimates (for example, changes in the estimated есопоmiс life or liquidation
value of the underll,ing asset) or changes in circumstances (for example, default Ьу the lessee) do not result in а пееd to

rcclassify the lease for accounting purposes.

Fiпапсе ]ease

Recognition апd Ineasurelnent
Дt the-iлception date of йе lease, the Group recognizes assetý чпdеr а.Гrпапсе lease in its statement of financial position and

presents thim as rесеiчаыеs in ап аmочпt equal to the net investrnent in the lease.

S u Ь s eq u еп t m е as utеIпеп t
Thc Group recognizes fiпапсе income over

оп the lesso('s пеt investment in the lease.
the lease term based оп а schedule that reflects а constant periodic rate оf rешrп
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3, SignificantAccountingPolicies (continued)

Lease (сопtiпuеd)

Opeпting lеаsе

Buildings
Масhiпеry and equipment
VеЫсlеs
Other

Notes to the consolidated Financial statements
for the ended 31 Decembet 2023с

ъ

лJl,]
отчётов

Recognition апd tпеаsurепепt

The Group recognizes lease payments under operating leases as iпсоmе using thе straфt-line or othef systematic method.
The Group may чsе а different systematic method if that method more adequately reflects йе pattern of decline iп benefits
frоm thе чsе ofthe underlying asset,

Taxation

The current income tax expense is calculated fоllойпg the legislation of the Republic of Kazakhstan,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated iл respect of all temporary differences using the balance-sheet liabitity mейоd.
Deferred iпсоmе taxes are ptovided for all temporary differenceý afising berween the tax bases of aýsets and liabilities and
their саrфпg values for financial reporting purposes, except where the deferred income tax arises from the initial tecognition
of goodйIl or of ап aýýet or liability in а transaction that is not а business combination and, at the time of Йе transaction,
affects neithet the accounting profit nor tахаЫе profit or loss.

А deferted tax asset is recorded only to the extent that it is рrоЬаЫе that tахаЫе profit йll Ье ачаilаЫе against which the
temporary differences reducing tax base сап Ье utilised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measuted at tax rates фаt ate

expected to apply to the period when the asýet is disposed of or йе liability is setded, based оп the laws that hаче Ьееп enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred income tax is provided оп temporary differences arising оп investments iп subsidiaries, associates and joint venrures,
except where the timing оf the reversal оf the temporary difference сап Ье controlled and it is рrоЬаЫе Йat the tempofafy
diгfеrепсе will not reverse in the fоrеsееаые future.

Besides, various operating taxes applied to operations of the Group are iп effect in the Republic оf Kazakhstan. These taxes

are reported in operating ехрепsеs,

Ptoperty, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost, excluding the costs of day-to-da1, serr.icing, less accumulated depreciation

ап&апу accumulated impaitment losses. such cost includes the cost of replacing part of equipment whеп that cost is incurred

if йе recognition criteria afe met.

дftеr initial recognition at original cost, buildings are carried at revalued amounts, which are fair value at the revaluation date

less subsequent accumulated depteciation апd subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are performed

frequently enough to avoid material discrepancies between thе fair value of the revalued asset and its carrying amount.

дссчmчlаtеd depreciation at the revalцation date is excluded with simultaneously reducing thе gтoss carrying amount of the

asset, and the reiulting аmочпt is restated based оп the revalued amount of the asset. The revaluation suцplus is recognized

in the property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve аý part оf ойеr comprehensive income, except fоr the reversal ог

the previous deciease iп the чаlче оf this asset previously recognized iп profit or loss. In this case, йе amount ог the inctease

iп tйе value ofthe asset is recognized in profit or loss. А rечаlчаdоп write-down is recognized in profit or loss, unless such а

decrease is offset directly against а previous sчцрlчs on the same asset in the properry, plant апd equipment revaluation reserve.

тhе annual transfer of аmочпts from the property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve to retained earnings is carried out

to the extent оf the difference between йi amount of depreciation calculated based оп йе revalued catrying amount of assets

and the amount of depreciation calculated based оп йе original cost of assets, At disposal of the asset, the corresponding

аmочпt included in йе revaluation reserve is Kansferred to retained еагпiпgs.

Depreciation of ап assct begins when it is ачаilаые for use. Depreciation is calculated оп а straight-line basis оvеr the asset

estimated useful lives:

Years

40
3-15

6,7
6-10

|7
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(thoasaпd Каlаkhstап tепgе апlкs otheпuise stated)

3. SignificantAccounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

)

Тhе asset's liquidation values, useful lives and meйods аrе teviewed, and adiusted as appropriate, at each financial year-end,

Costs related to repairs and renewals аrе charged whеп incurred апd included iп other operating ехрепsеs unless they quafify
for capitalisation.

Intangible assets

IпtапgiЫе assets comprise software and licenses.

IпtапgiЫе assets purchased separately from йе business are initially measured at йе original cost. Тhе cost of iпtапgiЫе assets

acquired iп а business combination is their fair value at the date оf acquisition. FоllоЙпg initial recognition, intangiЫe assets

are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation апd accumulated impaitment losses.

The useful lives of intangiЫe assets are assessed to Ье either finite or indefinite. IпtапgiЫе assets with finite lives аrе amortised
over the useful economic lives and assessed for impairment whenever йеrе is ап indication that the iпИпфЫе asset may Ье
impaired. Amortisation periods and meйods for iпtапфЫе assets wiй indefinite useful lives are reviewed at least at еасh
financial year-end.

E,stimatcd useful lives of iпипgiЫе assets are specified below:

Lives iп yeats used
iп 2023

In-house software 6-9

Other sofMare and licenses 5-8

Other 2,5

If йе Group creates ап intangiЫe asset, йе cost of iпtапgiЫе asset development is included in йе cost оf йе iпtапgiЫе asset

and accounted fot as construction iп progress чпtil the iпtапgiЫе aýset is ready fоr its intended use in accordance ЙЙ the

tcrms of the contract.

Тhе cost of ап internall1, generated iпtапgiЫе aýset is the sum of the following costs incurred from Йе date the iпtапgiЫе

asset first becomes еligiЫе for recognition and includes all costs Йаt сап Ье direcdy artributed or allocated оп а rеаsопаЫе

and consistent basis to thе development, creation, production апd preparation оf Йе asset for its intended use:

1) йе cost of materials and services used or consumed in Йе creation оf ап iпtапgiЫе asset;

2) salaries and ойеr costs associated йй employees ditecdy involved in Йе creation оf the asset (Йе Group capitalizes

the remuneration of employees ditectly involved in thе development of sofмare ptoducts based оп Pfogfess rePorts,

if such work meets all оf йе above requirements); and

3) any coýts that are directly аttriЬчаЫе to the created asset, such as fees for registration of legal rights, patents and

пcenses used to create йе asset.

ду,я
отчётов

Aýsets classified as held for sale

тhе Group classiгtes а non-current asset (or а disposal group) as held for sale if its carrying amount will Ье recovered

principally йrough а sale transaction rather than through continuing use. For йis to Ье the case, the non-cufrent asset (or

ai.por* фо,rр) Йst Ье ачаilаые for immediate sale in its present condition sublect опlу to terms that are usual апd customary

foisales Ъf such assets (or disposal groups) and its sale must Ье highly рrоЬаЫе.

The sale qualifies as Ыghly рrоьаые if the Group's mапаgеm€пt is committed to а plan to sell the поп-сurfеflt asset (or а

disposat fo,rp;. Дп асйеiiоgr"- to locate а buyer апd complete the рlап mчst hаче Ьееп initiated. Furйer, the поп-сurrепt

asset (or а disposal grо,rрl ьй have Ьееп 
".tirreiy 

marketed ior а sale at а price that is rеаsопаые concerning its current fair

value. ДIsо, the sale ,borrtd Ье expected ,о qrr^iry for recognition as а съmрlеtеd sale within one year from the date of

classiгtcation оf the поп-счrrепt asset (or а disposal grочр) as held for sale,

Investments in associates

дп associate is ап entity оп whose opetations the Group has significant iпfluепсе. Under thе equity method, the investment

iп ап associate is initially recognised at cost, апd their .u.ryi.rg аmоuпt is subsequently increased or decreased dче to

recognition оГ 
^r, 

i.r.,r.rto'.', ,ь"?. in profit or loss of 
"r, 

irrrr"si.йirrce the acquisitioъ date. Ал investor's share in profit or

loss of an investee is reported iп profit or loss oi ib" С.о"р. Receipts frоm ап investee as а result of iпсоmе distribution

rcduce the carrying аmочпt оf investments,
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отчётоаAmounts due to clearing participants

Тhе most of the amounts due to the clearing participants are thе money of the clearing participants оп the
correspondent accounts of the Group as of the reporting date iп оrdеr to carry out operations оп the next trading day.

Additionally, iп accordance йth the Group's internal document - "Rules for carrying out clearing activities fоr financial
instrument transactions" - each clearing participant must maintain а certain level of collateral апd security deposit оп the

Group's correspondent account. Also, some of tbe clearing pafticipants leave amounts оf mопеу at the end оf the trading day

оп thе correspondent account оf the Group in order to trade оп the next trading day. Тhе Group recognizes them as liabilities
to cleating pafticipants.

Central counte{pafty assets and liabilities

The Group acts as а central counterparty in Йе stock, foreign ехсhапgе and derivatives markets, being а party to each

participant in all transactions concluded at ехсhапgе ttading, and guarantees йеir execution оп а net basis. Assets and liabilities
for such transactions are reflected in the statement of financial position at пеt fair value calculated оп the basis of daily
setdement prices determined Ьу the Stock Exchange in accordance wiй approved internal documents. Financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value йrough ptofit or loss include the assets and liabilities оf Йе central counterparty for pending
transactions iп the stock and foreign stock markets at the end of Йе reporting pedod.

Оп 25 Septembet 202З, the Exchange transferted 100 % оf the clearing and setdement functions, as urell as the functions of
the central counterparty in the stock market, to а subsidiary - KASE Clearing Centre JSC феrеiпаftеt referred to as the
subsidiary).

Сеп tral соu п tеф аry со llateral

The Gtoup guatantees the fulfilment of пеt оЫigаtiопs to participants in the stock, foreign exchange апd derivatives markets
using ап individual and collective collateral system. Тhе individual collateral оf а participant may Ье either full or partial,
depending оп йе category assigned to the clearing participant, wЫсh is determined оп the basis оf its financial сопditiоп.

As collateral fоr the fulfilment оf obligations Ьу а clearing participant йЙ partial collateral for trades concluded оп the tefms
of partial collateral, the Group estaЫishes requiremcnts for partial collateralization of net оЫigаtiопs for transactions recorded

оп clcaring accounts and submitted orders оf such clearing participants and calculated taНng into ассочпt Йе spccifics
established Ьу the Group's internal methods for certain stock markets, as ,яеll as the requirements for providing а security
deposit in the relevant stock market, As secutity for йе fчlfilmепt оf obligations Ьу а clearing participant wiЙ partial collatetal
for trades concluded on full coverage tetms, йе Group еstаЫishеs tequirements for full coverage of пеt liabilities in those

financial instruments in rvhich йеу arise as а result of йеir conclusion of such ttades. As security fоr the fulfilment of
оЫigаtiопs of clearing participants йth full сочеrаgе, thе Group estaЫishes tequirements fot full coverage оf net obligations

on all clearing accounts оf such а clearing participant.

Тhе requirements of йе central counte{party for Йе amount оf partial collateral are calculated based оп Йе Group's internal

methodý апd must cover йе аmочпt оf credit and market risk of Йе clearing participant's nct liabi]ities in all fiпапсiаl

instruments to the central countefparty of each indiйdual stock market.

дs а collateral in йе stock market, foreign exchange market and derivatives market, the Gtoup accePts mопеу in the tenge

and thc US dollars ttansferred Ьу participants to corresPondent accounts of the Group.

In addition to mопеу, the clearing participants deposit securities traded оп йе stock Exchange as collateral iп йе stock market

in wысh the subsidiary actý as а Jentral Йч.t.rр"rtу. These securities are accounted as collateral in the kAsE section on sub-

accounts (client and own) of йе personal 
".iorrrrt 

of еасh depositor-clearing participant of.the stock market in central

Secutities bepository JSi 1со;, "r. 
,rо, the Group's assets and are not reported in the consolidated statcment оf financial

position.

If there is а lack оf collateral and/or mафп collateral of а clearing ParticiPant to secure.its ореп positions, the.clearing

participant is obliged to satisfy йе demand"of the Group Ьу depositing additional collateral or concluding tfansactions that

iead to а decrease in йе чаluе оf ореп positions,

А clearing participant ййочt collateral does поt provide collateral and does not рау guarantee fees,

clearing fеsеrче апd guarantee funds serve as collective collateral fоr the ttades to cleating participants, Reserve funds are

formed at the ехрепsе of the Group's о\чп funds for еасh stock market. Guarantee funds are fotmed оп the basis of security

deposits of clearing р.J.iрЫ' .r'.dit.d Ьу. clearing participan6 to Йе correýPondent_accounts. of the Group, In а certain

stock market, separate gr^r'"",.. funds may Ье fo;j, rvhich are used to covet outstanding liabilities under transactions with

financial instruments .o..i ra.d in trading modes with the participation of йе central countefparty,

19



отчёто в

{ГjDrэ
чrzясfr'frlg'

tJlld

Notes to the consolidated Financial statements
kazakhstan stock fot the ended 31 2023
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3. Signifrcant Accounting Policies (continued)

Central counterparty aýsets and liabilities (continued)

Reserve Гчпds are used exclusively to cover outstanding liabilities чпdеr transactions ЙЙ financial instruments of а certain
stock market for which this reserve fчпd was formed. Guarantee funds саппоt Ье used as collateral for the settlement of апу

other liabilities оf the Group апd/оr its clearing participants, except for liabilities чпdеr transactions concluded iп the stock

market as part оf default settlement. Collective collateral is used only in case indiЙdual collateral is insufficient. The procedure

fоr using collective collateral is provided for Ьу йе Group's internal documents.

Тhе Group is gadually transferring functions оf the central counterparty from the Ехсhапgе to the subsidiary in order to
differentiate thе risk profile оf the trading оrgа.пizы апd йе central counte{party.

оп 25 septembet 2023, the Ехсhапgе transferred clearing and settlement functions, as well as йе functions of йе central

cou.rt..p"ity in the stock market to the subsidiary.By the епd of 2024, the Exchange plans to transfer clearing and setdement

functions, as well as the functions оf the central counte{patty in the foreign exchange and derivatives markets, to the subsidiary.

Estimated liabilities

Тhе estimated liabilities are recognised whеп the Group has а present оЫigаtiоп (egal or constructive) as а result of а past

event, ап outflow оf resources embodying economic benefits йll рrоЬаЫ1, Ье required to setde the liability and the amount

of the obligation сап Ье estimated rеliаЫу.

Retirement and оthег employee benefit liabilities

The Group does поt have additional pension afrangements other than Participation in the state pension system of йе RерuЫiс

of Kazakйstan, which requires current contributions Ьу the employer calculated аý а percentage of current gross salary

Payments. Such ехрепsе is сhаrgеd iп йе period the related salaries are earned. Besides, the Group has по significant post-

employment bene{its.

Equity

Althoi4yd capital

Ordinary shares and поп-rеdееmаЫе preferred shates vriй discretionary dividend rights are classified as equiry. Costs to рау
for se*ic"s of tыrd parties directly attributaыe to the issue of пеw shares, ойеr thап оп а business combination, ate shown

as а deduction from йе proceeds in equity. Апу excess of the fair чаlче of consideration received over йе par value of shares

issued is recognised as additional сарiиl.

Вuцht-опt treaMry ttock

In the event that the Соmрапу purchases йе Соmрапу'ý shates, the consideration paid, including related transaction costs,

net оf income tax, is deduited fiom total equity as Ьочфt-очt treasrrry shares чпtil cancelled or reissued. ý7hеп such shares

are subsequently sold or reissued, йе сопsidъrаtiоr, recii,,red is included in equity. Bought-out tfeasury stock is accounted for

at their weighted average cost.

Diaideпdt

Dividends are rccognised as а liabifity and deducted from equity atthe reporting date.only.if йеу are declared befote or on

the reporting d^te. ъirrid.nds are disclosed whеп йеу are pioposed befoie the reporting date or proposed or declated after

the reportini date Ьчt before the consolidated financial statementý are authorised for issue.

Contingent assets and liabilities

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position and disclosed except whеп the disposal

of resources due to their rep^'y-.rr' is unlikely. Contingent assets аrе ,rot ,..ogт,ir.d iп йе consolidated statement оf frnancial

position Ьчt disclosed ь й ior-. of the аппчаl сопй[d"tеd fiпапсiаl ,t"t.й.rrt. in case the economic benefits are likely,

с
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3. SignificantAccountingPolicies (continued)

Revenue and expense recognition

KZTIUSD
KZTlEUR
KZTlRUR
KZTlGBP

Notes to the consolidated Fiпапсiаl statements
for the ended 31 December 2023

*ч*#
Цлd

отчётов

Revenue is recognised to the cxtent that it is рrоЬаЫе йаt the economic benefits will flow to the Gfoup апd the fevenue сап

Ье rеliаЫу measured. Тhе folloйng specific recognition criteria must also Ье met before revenue is recognised:

Iпternt апd ixlilar ret)eflrle апd ефепtе

тhе Grочр calculates interest revenue оп dеы financial assets measured at amottised cost or Fvocl Ьу applying the effective

interest rate to the gross саrфпg amount of financial assetý other than credit-impaired assets. The effective interest rate is йе
rate that exactly discounts estimated futute cash payments or receipts through the expected life оf the financial iпstrцmепt or

а shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrl,ing amount of йе fiпапсiаl asset or Гtпапсiаl liability. Тhе calculation takes

into ассоuпt all conttactual terms of the financial instrument (for example, PrePayment options) and includes any fees or

incremental costs that are directiy аttriЬцtаЫе to the instrument апd afe ап iпtеgfаl part оf йе effective interest rate, but not

future credit losses. The carrying amount of йе Гrnancial asset or financial liabilit1, is adjusted if йе Group rейsеs its estimates

of payments or receipts. The adiusted саrryiпg amount is calculated based оп the оtЦпаl effective interest rate апd the change

in carrying amount is recorded as interest revenue or ехрепsе.

Fee апd сопtпistiоп iпсоmе

The Group earns fee and commission income from various rypes of services it provides to its customers. Fее and commission

income сап Ье divided into the folloйng two categories:

31 DесепЬеr 2023 31 DесепЬеt 2022

о Fee iпсопе earпedfor tbe pmuisioп of мruiсы ouer а Eecified peiod

Commissions earned for йе рrойsiоп оf services over а period of time are accrued over йаt period as the related petformance

obligations are satisfied. such items include commission income, listing and clearing fees, information services, remote access

services and membership fees.

с Fee апd coпtlisrioп iпсоrпе frоп the prouitioп of trапласtiоп tetvices

Commission fees received for conducting or participating in negotiations on а tfansaction оп behalf of а йird party, (Гоr

instance, where the Group's performance obligation is to enter into ап agreement while purchasing shares or ойеr securities,

or to putchase or sell buЪinesses) are recogniled чроП completion of sчсh transaction. Commission fees (or а portion of
co-rriissio1 fees) associated йth specific ръrfоrmапсе obligations are recognized whеп thе relevant criteria are met. If the

contfact provides fоr чаriаЫе corrsid"r"tiorr, commission income is recognized only t9 the extent йаt it is ЫgЫу рrоЬаЫс
that, if thъ uncertainty inherent iп йе variable consideration is subsequently resolved, there will not Ье а significant decrease

iп the amount recognized in cumulativc rечепче.

Foreign cufrency translation

тhе consolidated financial statements are presented in the kazakhstan Tenge, wысh is thе Group's functional and

preýentation currency. Transactions iп foreigncurrencies аrе initially recorded iп the functional currency, converted at йе rate

bf erchange r,rling at the date of the transaction, Мопеtаry assets and liabi.lities denominated in foreign currencies are

retranslated at the functional счrrепсу rate of exchange ruling at the repotting date, Gain_s and losses resulting from йе

translation оf foteign счrrепсу t."rrr"",iorr. are recogni-sed in йе consolidated statement of comprehensive income as 'Net

losses from foreign crrrrerr.ies'. Non-monetary itemi that are measured iп terms of Ыstorical cost in а foreign currency are

translated using the ехсhапgе rates as of the dates of the initial ffansactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in а

foreign счrrепсу .re t апslйd using the ехсhапgе rates at the date lrhеп the fair value is determined,

Differences Ьемееп the contractual exchange сrte of atransaction in а fоrеigп currency *9 *. Kazakhstan Stock Ехсhапgе

official exchange fate on the date of the tran-sactioo"r. included iп gains lesJ losses from dealing in foreign currencies, As of

з1 December iоZз лrrd 2022, t|te official exchange rates were as follows:

454.56
502.24

5.06
571.41

462,62
492.86

6.43
556.57
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Kazakhstan Stock Ехсhапgе JSC
Notes to the consolidated Financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2023

(thoasaпd lQ7аkЬstап tепgе ltпless otbeпuise stated)

4. Critical Assumptions and Eýtimateý

Estimation uncertainty
стчётов

While applying tbe Group's accounting policies, management has used its iudgment алd made estimates in determining the

amounts recognized in the consolidated fiпапсiаl statements. Below are the most significant uses of iudgments and estimates:

Fair aalae оffпапсiа/ iшtratneпtt

If the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of financial position cannot
Ье determined based оп prices in ап active market, they are determined using various valuation models that include
mathematical models. Тhе inputs for such models are determined based оп thе оЬsеrчаЫе market, if роssiЫе; oйerwise,
judgment must Ье applied to determine а fait value. Additional information is provided lп Note 24.

Меаsurеtпепt of ефutеd c,redil lокж

The Group fotms allowances (provisions) for expected credit losses on financial assets апd rесеiчаЫеs. Тhе amount of such
losses is determined Ьу йе Group based оп the credit losses assigned to financial assets or their issuers, and Йе timing and
amount of rесеiчаыеs.

Iпфаitvlепt фРЦеry, Рlапt апd ецфtпепt апd iпtапgiЬtе amett

At the end of each reporting period, the Gtoup reviews the саrфпg amounts of its property, plant апd equipment and

iпtапgiЫе assetý to determine \л/hеthеr there is апу indication that such assets mау Ье impaired. Based оп ап analysis оf internal

and external factors, management determines whether there is апу indication of роssiЫе impairment at Йе reporting date.

If there is ап indication of impairment, the Group estimates the rесочеrаые аmочпt. Тhе rесочеrаые аmочпt is determined

as the higher of fair value less selling expenses and value iп use.

Determining the rесочеrаЫе аmочпt оГа cash-generating unit involves the use оf management's estimates. Тhе methods used

to determine value iп use include, Ьцt ate not limited to, discounted cash florv methods. These estimates, including the

meйods used, can have а significant impact оп thе fair value and, ultimately, йе amount of апу impairment of recovery of
поп-fiпапсiаl assets in fчtчrе periods.

Iп 2О23, Йе Group revalued йе properry, plant апd equipment wiй йе involvement of ап independent appraiser. Fоllойпg
that revaluation, tйе book value of propert},, plant and equipment was reduced to fair vаluе ýote 16). Based оп the results оf
йе analysis оf external and internal indicators as of 31 December 2023,йе Group did поt Гrпd апУ indications oГimpairment

оf property, plant апd equipment and iпtапgiЫе assets.

Litiдаtiопl

under IFRs, the Group recognizes provisions only whеп thete is а present оыigаtiоп due to paýt events, йе economic

ЬепеГrts сап Ье transferied 
"nJthe 

cost оf йе transfer can Ье measured rеliаЫу. If these criteria are not met, по provision is

accrued, and such contingent liability is disclosed iп йс notes to the consolidated financial statements. The emergence оf апу

1iabilities not currently reioфzed or disclosed iп the consolidated financial statements could have а significant impact on Йе

гrпапсiаl position оr iь. Gio,rp. Тhе application of tыs accounting pdnciple to litigation requires the management оf the

G.oup to make decisions оr, .rario,rs й"tt.r, of fact апd law that are beyond mafiagement's co_ntrol. The Group reviews

urrr"ttl.d litigation each time there is а change in the course of its development, and at еасh reporting date, to assess 
_the 

need

for provisioiing in the consolidated Гrпапсiаl statements, Among the factors considered in making decisions to form the

рrойriоrrs "r. 
й. nature of the suit, claim or penalty, thе legal рrоЙss and the amount of potential damages in thе jurisdiction

rvhere the litigation occurs, the claim or penalty *", fit.d, й. ioorr. of the litigation (including аftеr the date оf consolidated

financial ýtatements b.rt prior to their publiiation), opinions or views of legal advisers,. previous experience of similar

proceedings and any decisions оf йе Group's mапаgеmЪпt as to how to respond to а suit, claims or penalty,
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5. Commission and Fее Income

Commission and fee income include the folloйng items:

commission fees
Listing fees

Clearing fees
Membership fееs

Income from providing infotmation services
Iпсоmе from providing remote access services
Proceeds from serr.ice provision
Revenue from contracts w,ith cuýtomers

Fее and commission income
other revenue from conttacts \й/ith customets
Total revenue from contfacts lpith customers

Financial assets at amortized cost
Investment securities
Reverse REPO
Amounts due Гrоm credit institutions
Саsh equivalents
Fiпапсе lease

Total intetest income оп financial assets

Notes to the consolidated Financial sиtements
for the ended 31 December 2023

/,1ПjП,э

с
2023 2022

3.011.171
917.908

3.352.257
346.695
255.727
247.430

2.094.270
185.з74

2.115.91з
309.976
246.226
164.73l

8.724.582 5.7t6,490

The Group's fечепче from contracts йth customers is primarily represented Ьу revenue from Йе provision of services.

Revenue ftom contracts wiй customers tecognized in йе consolidated statement оГ comprehensive iпсоmе for йе years

ended 31 December 2023 апd 31 December 2022 amounted to:
2023 2022

7.628.031
496.551

5.305.533
410.957

8.724.582 5.716.490

The Group recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position the following contractual assets and liabilities related

to contfacts йй customers: 
202з 2022

Contractual assets (as part of other assets)

Contractual liabilities (as patt оf received advances)

Тhе Group generally collects commissions before йе completion оf йе transaction for wЫсh йеу are due, ot immediatel1,

after its completion (in йе case of contracts for which а performance obligation is satisfied at а certain point in time, for
cxample, commissions for transactions оп the Stock Ехсhапgе). Iп the case оf services performed during а petiod (such as

listing fees), йе Group will generally charge mопйlу, quarterly or annually collect in advance йе аmоuпts in respect of ап

appropriate pottion of the overall contfact term.

Тhе Group applies йе practical expedient in раrаgrарh 12| of IFRS 15 апd does not disclose remaining performance

obligations for contracts йй ап original expected term оf опе year or less.

6. Interest Income
2023 2022

803.504
110.840

684.862
90.876

6.857.584
10.162.181

6.838
2,226.44|
(25.244)

3.103.289
2.656.з5з

t4.652
658.147

|9.227.800 6.432.441
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7. Operating Expenses

Expenses for personnel
Depreciation and amortization (Notes 16, l7)
Expenses on depreciation of property, plant and equipment and amortization

of right-of-use aýsets
social tax
Taxes other than iпсоmе tax
Technical maintenance of property, plant and equipment and iпtапgiЫе assets

Bank services
communication and sýиIFт services
Information services
Business development expenses
Membership fees
professional services
Operating lease

Personnel training
Travel expenses
Insurance indemnities
Expenses for mailing and courier services
Оthеr expenses
Total opetating expenses

8. Taxation

Corporate iпсоmе tax ехрепsе includes йе folloйng items:

Assessed corporate income tax - cuffent paft
Adjustment to co{pofate income tax oГprior years

Assessed deferred tax - origination and reduction oftemporary differences
Nlinus dcfcrred tax recognized in other comptehensive iпсоmе фrореrtу, plant and

equipment revaluation)

Corporate iпсоmе tax ехрепýе

Profit before соrроrаtе income tш( ехрепýеý
Statutory йх fate

тах at statrrtofy tate

Adiustment to corporate iпсоmе tax o[priot yeats

Nол-tахаЬlе iпcottte

Nоп-tахаЫе interest iпсоmе оп gочеfпmепt and ойеr securities

оthеr non-taxable incomc

Nоп-dеdцсtiЬlе еФепrеl:
provision for credit losses

Nlembership fees

General and administrative expenses

Other
Corporate income tax ехрепýе

Notes to the consolidated Financial statements
for the ended 31 2023

/ i7Е\rъ
| '|:; l,,..,

Qi:,1a)

2023

3.488.731
561.763

2.27з,863
421,.995

153.010
2з8,з77
2з1.411
з2.148
47.948
38.669

11,7.175
2з.156

164.617
36.330
23.421
47.183

1.199
2,851

136.140

от(

60.021
241.912
263.915
447.2l4
10.900
42.885
77.772

344.022
34.953

223.5|4
29.459
78.797
62.220
23.335

995
133.500

б.059.908 з.989.49з

2023 2022

2.827,978

(7.015)

20.09з

1.002.000

098)
154.706

(31.920) Q2.489)
2.803.136 1.134.019

The Group's income is taxed опlу iп the RерчЫiс of Kazakhstan. Iп accordance йth tax laws, the applicable corporate income
tax rate iп 2023 апd 2022 is 20 %. The reconci.liation Ьемееп йе corporate income tax ехрепsе recognized iп йеsе
consolidated financial statementý and earnings Ьеfоrе cotporate income tax expenseý multiplied Ьу thе starutory tax rate fоf
йе yeats ended 31 December is as follows:

2023 2022

21,327,40l
20%

1.953.173

20%
4.264.280 1.590.635

(7.015)

(L.464.974,
(7)

(15.348)

2,1,238

(1.038)

(198)

(548.244)

56.550

101

19.507

15.668

1.1з4.0192.803.13б
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8. Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities as of 31 December, as well as Йeir movements for relevant years,

items:

Notes to the consolidated Financial statements
for the ended 31 Deccmber 2023

Oig,ination алd rcduction Oigination епd teductioп
of t"-por"ry diff on."" of t"-p,

rп ойq rп ойеr
31 DесепЬu Iп proft or соmрtеhелsi 31 DесепЬеt rп рюfrt ot cotnplehensi 31 DесепЬеr

2021 loss vсiпсоrпе 2022 loss vеiлсоtпе 2023

(

тах effect of deductible
tempotary diffetences

дссruаls for unused leaves
Share of income/loss
provision fоr dочhfчl claims
Other
Deferred tж asset

15.618 (575)

(6.909)

560

1 5.04з
(6.909)

(3.270)
45.433
(560)

||,773
38,5ц

560
l43483

16.10l 8.837 41.460

Тах effect of tахаЫе tempotary
differences

Property, plant and cquipment
and iпtапgiЫе assets

Defetted tax liability
Total deferred corporate

income tax liabilities, net

1,7

(189.628) (132.2lT (22.489)

9, Earnings pef Shafe

Тhе earnings per shafe and weighted лчеrаgе пчmЬеf of ordinary shares used to calculate basic еаmiпgs per share are as

follows:

2023 2022

11.827 (31,920) (364,427')

Net earnings for thе ),еаr attributed to the Group shareholders
Weighted луеrлgе numbef оf ordinary ýhafes to determine basic earnings per shаrе

Basic and di]uted earrrings pef shate (tenge)

10. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Саsh and cash equivalents include йе following items:

Correspondent accountý at credit institutions
Correspondent account at NBRK

Minus allowance for ECLs
Cash and cash equivalents

Correspondent accounts at banks include the following items:

The Bank of New York Mellon
Central Securities Depository JSC
Citibank N.A.
Дtуп BankJSC
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A,
other credit institutions

Minus allowance for ECLs
Correspondent accounts at credit institutions

18.518.265
1,075.2з7

6.819.154
1.075.231

77.222.59 6.э42.04

31 DесепЬеt
2023

31 Decetnber
2022

110.002,508
75.977.226

(274.801)

226.062.892
42.177.783

(з85.з72)
185.644.933 267.855.30з

31 Decetnbet
2023

31 DесепЬеt
2022

46.149.528
52.024.4l5
7.720,257

465.647
1,379.252
2,323.475

159.032.252
59.609.з32
4.098.555

68.705
1,431.129
1.822.919

110.002.508

(274,801)

226.062.892

(з85.з72)

225,677.520709.727.707
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10. Саsh and Cash Equivalents (continued)

cash апd cash equivalent balances do not indicate а significant increase in credit risk ot impairment as of 31

and 31 Decembet 2О22. Ап analysis of changes in ECL allowances for the year is shоwп Ьеlо'л:

2023

2023

2022

2023

стчётов

Allowance for ECLs as of 1January
Net change in allowance
As of 31 DесеmЬеr

Tengc
US dollar
Total reverse REPO

12. Centtal Countefparty Financial Assets and Liabilities

REPO and reverse REPO
Foreign ехсhапgе transactions
Total centtal сочпtеqраrtу financial assets and liabilities

(385.372)
110.571

(100.227)
(285.145)

(274.801) (з85.372)

17, Amounts due From Ctedit Institutions and Reverse REPO

31 Deceпbet
2023

31 Deceпbet
2022

Term deposits placed for mоrе thап 90 days

Minus allowance for ECLs
Total amounts due from ctedit institutions 161.92,7

дs of 31 December 2О22, tetm deposits included funds in the аmочпt оf 162.609 thousand tenge placed at Halyk Bank of
Kazakhstan JSC at effective rate of rеtчrп of 11.25 % to 11.35 Уо per аппчm. The deposit was repaid оп 2Мау 2023.

Ап analysis of changes iп ECL allowances for йе year is given below:

2023 2022

Аllоrлrапсе fot ECLs as of 1January
Net сhапgе in allowance
As of 31 Decembet (682)

Reverse REPO is prescnted as follows:

(682)
682 (682)

31 Decetnbet
2023

31 Decetnbet
2022

72.029.0|2 35.551.435

,72.029.01z 35.551,435

31 DесепЬеr
2023

31 DесепЬеr
2022

2.877.258.922
377.827

11.424.940.071,

344.514.505

2.877.636.749 11.769.454.576

тhе central counterparty Гrпапсiаl assets represent rесеiчаыеs frоm foreign exchange and REpo transactions, the central

counte{party fiпаrr.йl liabilities represent accouflts рауаые under relevant transactions that the Group entefed into with

market p".ti.ip-t, in its role 
"s 

а i.nt al .o,rrrt.rp^ity. The counterclaims and liabilities of indiйdual counterpartieý are Sct

оff iп accordance with IдS 32. The Group is $adua[y transferring functions оf the central counterParty from the Ехсhапgе

to thc subsidiary iп order to differentiat. ib.,йt profile оf the trading otganlzr and йе сепtrаl соuпtеtраrtу,

On 25 September 202з,thе Ехсhапgе transferfed clearing апd s9$9melt functions, as well as the functions оf the central

.oun,"rp*ray in the stock market to Ье subsidiary. Ву thJend of 2О.24, 
_thе 

Group plans to transfer clearing and setdement

functions, as well аý thе functions of the cent; .orrrr,.1p"rty in the foreign exchange and derivativcs markets, ftom the

Ехсhапgе to the subsidiary.
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Notes to the consolidated Financial statements
for thе year ended 31 December 2023

(tЬоаsапd Ка1аkhstап tепgе ttпless оthепйsе stated)

13. InyestmentSecurities

Investment secutities include the folloйng items:

Debt securities at amortized cost
Notes of the National Bank of the RерчЫiс of Kazakhstan
Bonds оf the Ministry of Fiпапсе оf the RерчЫiс of Kazakhstan
Bonds оf the US Treasury Department
Bonds о[ internadonal organizations
Minus allowance fоr ECLs
Investment securities

/:t*|F.*.r.| ._J"e^,l

отчётов
31 DесеmЬеr

2023 2022

33.б03.208
14.4з4,420
|8.533.297

228.559
(90.722)

12.056.569
19.64,7.548

2з2.441
(47.з22)

66.708.762 э1,889,236

14. Equity Securities at Fair Vаlче Tfuough Other Comprehensive Income

Equiq, securities at trVOCI include the following items:

31 DесеtпЬеr 2023 31 DесепЬеt 2022

rntetest, 0Z Аtпоuпt rntetest, 0% Аtпоuлt

Centtal Securities Depository JSC
Iiyrgyz Stock Exchange CJSC
Equity securities at FVOCI

Тhе Group has classified, in its sole disctetion, certain equity investments as FVOCI equiry investments оп the basis that they

are not beta гоt trading. Such investments include mandatory investments in йе capital of stock exchanges and clearing

otganizations. central sъсчritiеs DepositoryJsc is а non-profit organization. The controlling shareholder of central securities

DJpositoryJSC is йе NBRK, whoie interiitis 63.24 %. The Group's management believes that йе Group does not have а

significant impact on the activities of Central Securities DepositoryJSC.

15. Investments in the Associate

дs of 31 December 2О23 апd 2022, investments in the associate are reported as follows:

31 Decetnbet 2023 31 DесепЬеt 2022
rnterest, 0й Аtпоuпt rnterest, oZ Аlпоuпt

29.28
7.05

18.800
2.253

29.28
9.07

18.800
2.253

21.053 21.05з

RTRS LLP

Details are given in Note 2.

50 107.289 50 125.083
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment

Notes to the consolidated Financial statements
fоr the year ended 31 December 2023

Масhiлеrу
апd Ttaлspott

vehicIes Othet TotalBuildiпg Lепd equipпent

Revalued amount
31 DесеmЬеr 2021

Receipts
Revaluation еггесt
Disposal
31 December 2022
Revaluation еffесt
Receipts
Disposal
31 December 2023

Accumulated depreciation
31 Decembet 2021

Revaluation effect
Accumtllated loss offset

Disposal
Charged depreciation
31 December 2022
Revaluation effect
Disposal
Charged depreciation
31 December 2023

9з4,ззз 77.210

11.705 11 .,7 41

160.462
зз2.285

58,926

12.307

148.161
40.404

186.009

1.9,79.152
372.689
з5.75з

69.820
967.559

(161.820)

946.038
118.390

89.011
(40,174)

856.870
(|24.415)

7t.233
(8.396)
29.s4|

(6.410)
81.148

(30.995)

1.064.428 48.837 1.823.814 85.968 236.762 3.259.209

(2б.074) (403.901) (17.778) (722.723) (570.476)

52.148

823
(120.406) (1 8.506)

12,494
90

(11.224\

88,432
12.494

913
(176.210\

з6.284

(26.0,74)
(121.363) (644.847\

27.893 13.328
з0.773

(18.601)

41.221
155.188

(270.6б8)
724.4|5

(27.89з) 846)
(609.915) (109.191) (719.106)

Net саrryiпg amount
As of 31 December 2021

As of 31 December 2022

As of 31 December 2023

908.259 77.270 356.561 41.148 25.438 1.408.676

946.038 89.011 567.875 71.233 64.646 1.738.803

|.064.428 48.837 1.213.899 85.968 726.911 2.540.10з

дs оf з1 December 2023, tbeoriginal cost of fully depreciated ProPerty, plant апd cquipment аmоuпtеd to 268,256 йоusапd

tenge (31 December 2022: З59.057 thousand tenge).

тhе Group engaged йе services оf ап independent appraiser- Independent Appraisal and Legal centre LLp - to determine

йе fair value of land, buildings 
"rrd 

trurrsport vehicles оwпеd Ьу йе Group. Fй vаluе is_determined based on the value of

similar properties offered in й-е market, аsъеl as using thе discoultld cash flow mейоd. Тhе revaluation date is 28 December

2023. Беиils of thе fafu value of land, buildings and transPort veыcles is disclosed iп Note 26,

If йе land, buildings and transport veыcles would Ье measuted using the cost accounting model, йеп the carrying аmоuпt

figures would look like йis:

31 DесепЬеr 2023 31 DесепЬеr 2022

Laпd
Ttanspott

Вuilйпg vehicles
Transpott

Building vehiclesLапd

Original cost
Accumulated depreciation
Net catrying amount |,628 842.027

1.628 1.023.22з
(181.196)

90,924
(59.325)

|.628 1.02э.223
(155.615)

61.424

31.599 1.628 867.608 12.924

28
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17. Intangible Assetý

Movements of iпtапgiЫе asset items are presented below:

rл-hоusе
sofмerc

Notes to the consolidated Fiпапсiаl statements
for the ended 31 December 2023

стчётов

Othet
software елd

Iiсепsеs Othet
сопstrчсtiоп

iп ptocess TotaI

Original cost
31 December 2021
Receipts
Salary and other costs capitalization
Ttansfers
Disposal
31 DесеmЬеr 2022

Receipts
Sаlаq, and other costs capitalization
31 Decembet 2023

Accumulated amottization
31 December 2021
Charged amortization
Writе-оГf
31 December 2022

284,596

82.880

1.514.648
460,445

6.583
26.782

2,778

15.162
8.207

(1 8.102)

1.821.589
495.4з4
82.880

(486)

Q|.696)(17.065)
14.8з8
(4.631)

350.411

721.907

1.985.з00

184.131

36.74з

7.260

5.867 2.377.72|

191.391
127.907

472.318 2.769.43| 43.403 5.867 2.691.019

(179.707)
(42.787)

6.200

(з2,1.41,1)

(213.5з0)
4,197

(6.583)
(1.958)

(513,701)

Q58,275)
10.397

(216,294) (536,744) (8.541) (761,579)

Charged amortization
31 December 2023

Net catrying amount
As of 31 DесеmЬеr 2021

As of 31 December 2022

As of 31 December 2023

104.889 1.187.237 1.307.888

134.117 1.448.556 21.602 5.867 1.676.142

256.024 1.345.919 30.532 5.8б7 1.638.342

Дs оf 31 December 2О23, йе original cost of fully amortized intangiЫe assetý amounted to 325.880 Йоusапd tenge (31

December 2022: 315.815 йочsапd tenge),

18. Right-of-useAssets.

Office premises

Original cost
31 Decembet 2022
Receipts 210.911r

Disposals
31Decembet 2023 210917

75.762

Accumulated depreciation
31 December 2022
Charges for йе year
Excluded at disposal
31 Decembet 2023

Net carrying amount
As of 31 December 2022
As of 31 DесеmЬеr 2023

The Group leases office premises for ап averagc term of lease of 3 years.

Amounts recognized iп profit and loss

Expenses оп depreciation of riфt-оf-чsе assets
Intetest expenses оп lease liabilities

31 Decernber
2023

(60.021)

(60.021)

150.890

31 DесеmЬеt
2022

60.021
25.244
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other financial assets
commission fееs rесеiчаые
Iпсоmе оп clearing transaction services
Iпсоmе from information services rесеiчаые
I-isting fees rесеiчаЫе
NIembership fees rесеiчаЫе
Iпсоmе оп remote access services rесеiчаые
penalties and fiпеs rесеiчаые
Total othet flпапсiаl assets

Minus allowance for ECLs
Total other financial assets

othet non-financial assets
Taxes ойеr йап corporate income tax
Deferrals
Inventories
Prepaid leaves
Other
Total other non-financial assets
Total офеt assets

Тhе other Iiabilitics include the following items:

othet financial liabilities
РауаЫеs
Dividends рауаЫе
Total other fiпапсiаl liabilities

other поп-fi nancial liabilities
Accrued unused leavcs
Taxcs other thап colporate iпсоmе tax
Othet
Total other non-financial liabilities
Total other liabilities

Collaterals fоr foteign cxchangc and stock markets
Secutity deposits for foreign ехсhапgе markct
Sccutity deposits for stock market
Sccurity deposits for derivatives matket
collatetal for detivatives market
Total аmочпts due to clearing Participants

.r\,.t
79. Prepayments

As оf 31 December 2023, prepayments amounted to 434.82З thousand, including prepayment to

MICEX_RTS PJSC феrеiпаftеr - МОЕý iл йе аmочпt of З44.035 Йочsапd tený, чпdеr Йе license

to hold ехсhапgе auctions апd to clear and perform contracts to provide technical services in relevant markets dated 10

October 2018.

Z0. Other Assets and Liabilities

Тhе other assets include the folloйng items:

Q.ljдr]й,;

31 DесепЬеr
2023

31 DесепЬеr
2022

194.084
393.774
166.819
32.561
7.554

20.245
992

112.454
279.з96
174.518

50,11 1

5.927
13.654

768
816.029

(72.525)

696.828

(1 1.966)

803.504 684.862

84.160
l27,640
39.507
5.952
573

20,747
89.319
16.391
з.778
162

257,832 1зO.з97

1.055.336 815.259

31 Deceпber
2023

31 DесепЬеr
2022

156,773
2.203

158.976 131.489

58,426
215.057
55.8б8

73.583

129.368
24,594

329.35| 227.545
488.32,1 359.034

27. Amounts Due to Clearing Patticipants

As of 31 December 202З апd 31 Decembet 2022,the amountý due to clearing panicipants were preýented with security deposits
and mафп deposits that are collateral for discharging net liabilities of clearing participants of the derivatives mafket, stock and
foreign exchange markets transactions.

31 DесепЬu 31 DесепЬеt
20% 2022

282.590.546
656.000
745.500
57.000

140.366

308.443.419
629.000
620.000
48.000

з.068.924
312.809.34з284.189,4l2

30
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27. Amounts Due to Clearing Participants (continued)

Тhе аmочпts were placed Ьу the folloйng clearing participants:

kazakhstan second-tier banks
о ther fi папсiаl institutions
International bank setdement and credit institution
Total amountý due to clearing pafticipantý

22. Lease Liabilities

Quantity of
issued shares

Notes to thе consolidated Financial statements
for thе ended 31 December 2023

ётов

31 Decetnber
2023 2022

234.971.639
45.876.973
3.340.800

238.476.019

61.186.074
1з.147.250

284.189.4|2 з12.809,э4з

31 Decetnbet
2023

31 Deceпbet
2022

Тlре оf liabiliry maturity

Current
Non-current
Total lease liabilities

Lease liability
31 December 2022
Receipts
Paid principal on lease
paid intetest
Interests
Increase in short-term lease рауаЫеs
31 Decembet 2023

Тhе Group does not face liquidity risk in relation to its lease liabilities.

23. Authorized Capital

The Company's authorized capital is presented йй йе following пчmЬеr of ordinary shates:

Quantity of Quantity of
bought-out outstaлding

sharcs shates

90.б96
86.914

777.670

Authorized
capitaI

210.91,1

(40.033)

Q5.244)
25.244

6.732
l71.610

Bought-out
treasuty stock

31 December 2021 1.075.23l

31 DесеmЬеr 2022 7.075.237 7,075,231 4.189.030

31 DесеmЬеr 2023 1,075.231 |,075,23| 4,189.030

As of 31 December 2023, rberc are 5.000.000 auйorized ordinary shares iп total (31 December 2022: 5.000.000), 1.075.231
authorized shares wete issued and fully paid.

Nature and purpoýe of othet ptovisions

РrоРеф, Рlапt апd ецфtпепt reualaatioп resetve

Тhе revaluation reýerve ofproperty, plant and equipment is used to reflect increases and decreases in the fair чаlче ofland,
buildings and transport veЫcles, but only to the extent that such decrease is due to а previous increase in the чаlче of йе
same asset previously recognized iп equity.

Prouisioп JorJair ааlи

This рrойsiоп pfesents changes iп the fait value of fiлапсiаl assets at FVОСI.

31

сa,

1.075.231 4.189.030



Notes to the consolidated Financial statements
fоr the ended 31 December 2023kazakhstan stock

(thонsапd Kalakllstaп tеtлgе uпlеss otheпllise stated)

23. Authorized Capital (continued)

As of1 January 2022
Revalued property, plant апd equipment
Depreciation оf revaluation reserve, less иxes
Increase in reserve fчпd
As of 31 December 2022
Revalued property, plant and equipment
Depreciation оГ revaluation reserve, less иxes
Increase iп reserve fund
Ь of 31 December 2023

Ч;

п

для,чётов
fuMrve jlпd

The reserve fчпd is formed under the requirements of the Law of the Republic оf Kazakhstan Oz the SeMitiet Market to
minimize the operating risks of а clearing organization (central countefpafq). At the meeting of the Boatd оf Directors оf the

Group dated 26 bгrril 202З, it was decided to increase the teserve fund of thе stock market Ьу 708.000 thousand tenge. Тhе
assessment of the adequacy оf clearing guarantee and reserve funds for 202З was considered. According to the results оf the

aýsessment ofthe adequacy ofclearing funds fot 2023,itwas established that there is по need to rерlепish the clearing reserve

funds оf the stock апd foreign exchange matkets, as well as the derivatives market.

Моuеtпепtt of ihxu oJ otherProuitioпt

Movements of items of other provisions are presented below:

prouision for fair
value

Property, plant
апd equipпent

rеvаluаtiоп
fesefve Resetye fuлd

90.986
101.698
(9.026)

3.170.000

183.658
80.8,и

(17.802)

3.170.000

708.000
и6.700 3.878.000

24, Commitments and Contingencies

Opetating environment

Kazakhstan continues economic reforms and development of legal, tax and administrative infrastfucture that would meet Йе
requirements оf а market есопоmу. Тhе stability оf Kazakhstan's есопоmу iп the Гчtчrе will largely depend оп Йе progress
of these reforms, as well as оп the effectiveness of the measures taken Ьу the Gочеrпmепt оf йе RерчЫiс of Kazakhstan in
the field оf есопоmу, financial and monetary policy,

Тhе есопоmу of Kazakhstan is negatively affected Ьу йе decline in oil prices and йе tenge volatility against malor foteign
currencies. Intetest rates in tenge rеmаiп Ыgh. Тhе aggegate of йеsе factors has led to а decrease in йе availability of capital
and ап increase iп its cost, as чrеll as increased uncertainty about furйer economic gfoý/th, wЫсh could adversely affect Йе
financial position, performance and economic prospects of the Group, Тhе management of йе Group believes that it is taНng
appropdate measufes to maintain the economic sustainability of the Group in the current environment.

Taxation

Тах conditions in the Republic of Kazakhstan are subiect to change and inconsistent application and interpretation.
Discrepancies in the inteцpretation of the Kazakhstan laws and regulations of the Group апd the Kazakhstan competent
authorities mау result in additional taxes, fines апd penalties.

The Kazakhstan legislation and taxation practices are in а state of continuous development and аrе йerefore subject to varying
intelpretations апd frequent changes, wЫсh may Ье retroactive. In some cases, in order to determine the tахаЫе base, tax
legislation refers to the provisions of IFRS, while the interpretation of йе relevant provisions of IFRS Ьу the Kazakhstan
taxation auйorities mау differ frоm the accounting policies, judgments and estimates applied Ьу management in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements, wЫсh may lead to additional tax liabilities of the Bank. Тhе taxation
authorities may conduct а retrospective check witЫп three уеаrs after the end of the tax year. Тhе Group's management
believes that its interpretations of thе relevant legislation are appropriate апd the Group's tax position is rеаsопаЫе,

Litigations

In the поrmаl course of business, the Group is subject to lawsuits and claims. Management believes that the рrоЬаЫе liabilities
(if ап1) arising from sчсh lawsuits or claims will поt hаче а material adverse effect оп the future financial position оr
performance of the Group.

з2
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(tЬоuмпd Ka1akhstatl tепgе нпlеss otheruise ltated)

25. Risk Management Policy

Introduction

Тhе risk mапаgеmепt is an integtal part of thе Group's activities. The basic risks inherent in the Group's

о credit risk;

. liquidity risk;

о market risk;

о foreign exchange risk; апd

. operating risk.

The Group recognizes the significance of йе existence of the effective and efficient risk management pfocess. То епsurе

efficient 
^.rd 

.ff".ti,,r. risk management policy, йе Group determined the basic risk management principles йй the basic

goal to protect the Group against existing risks апd to епаые it to асыече tatgeted реrfоrmапсе. The basic tasks of the risk

management system are detection of risk sources, determination оf risk levels, development of policies and rules in the field

of risй mапаgеmепt and implementation of control mechanisms, including fixing limits and subsequent adherence йereto.

Тhе risk mапаgеmепt policy, procedute for identification, assessment, monitoring апd response to risk events, as well as the

procedure fоrъапаgiпg financial and opetating risks of the Group are regulated Ьу respective internal documents of the

Group.

Description of basic risks of the Group is given hereafter.

N t k п а п аgе tп е п t r hv с tare

Тhе Board of Ditectors has overall responsibility for identifring апd conKolling risks, but йеrе are also separate independent

bodies that are rеsропsiЫе for mапфпg апd conttolling risks.

Board of Dirutort

тhе Board ог Directors is liаые for йе development оf the risk management strateы, approval оf the principles of а сопсерt

of policy and limits Ыоkеп down Ьу qpes оf risks. Besides, the Board of Directors is liаые for material matters of risk

-rn"g.-.rrt and controls the execution of respective dccisions adopted сопсеrпiпg risks and controls them.

Мапаgеttлепt Board

Тhе Management Board is liаЫе for ensuring arrangements for ап effective risk mапаgеmепt system of йе Stock Ехсhапgе.

Соппittее for пarket iskl

The collegial consulting body of the Stock Exchange, the minimum required composition of wЫсh is determined Ьу йе
Managemint Board, the реrsопаl composition is approved Ьу order оf the chairpetson of thе Management Board, Тhе basic

functions of йе Committee for Market Ksks are analysis, monitoring, identification and management оf risks associated Йth
the situation in the fiпапсiаl markets, operations of thе Stock Ехсhапgе, its counterparties - Йе Stock Ехсhапgе members,

clearing participants, issuers and investors, as well as preparing recommendations to йе Stock Exchange's Мапаgеmепt Board,

I п u е t trп е п t С о tz rп i ttee

The соllефаl body of the Stock Exchange thе structure of wЫсh is approved Ьу йе Мапаgеmепt Board, Тhе basic functions
of the Investment Committee iлclude the adoption of investment decisions on settlement of transactions wiЙ financial

instruments at the expense of assets of the Stock Exchange and ensuring minimization of the level of financial risks incidental
to investment,

N* пiпirпi1аtiоп

As part оf risk mапаgеmепq the Group uses derivatives апd other instruments to mапаgе items arising from changes iп
interest rates, exchange rates, shаrе price risk, credit risk, апd expected ttansaction positions. The Group actively uses collateral
to mitigate its credit risk.

14 l)|

стчётов
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25. Risk Management Policy (continued)

Introduction (continued)

Ежсеll i l,e risk со п се п l ra tiопs

Notes to the consolidated Financial statements
for the vear ended 31 ,bet 2023

(

отчётов

Risk concentrations arise whеп а пчmЬеr of counterparties engage iп similar activities or actiйties in the same geogTaphic area,

of counterparties have similar economic characteristics, and, as а result of changes in economic, political and other conditions,
hаче а similar effect on Йе ability оf these counterparties to meet contractual oЫigations. Ksk concentrations teflect Йе
relative sensitiйty of the Group's реrfоrmапсе to changes in conditions that affect а particular industry or geographic tegion.

То avoid excessive concentrations оf risk, the Group's polcies and procedures include specific guidelines aimed at maintaining
а diversified роrtГоliо. Established risk concentrations are managed.

credit tisk

Credit risk is the risk that the Group will iпсчr losses Ьесачsе its customers of countefparties fail to meet their contractual
obligations. The Group mапаgеý credit risk Ьу setting limits оп the amount оf risk Йе Bank is rvilling to accept оп individual
counterparties and Ьу monitoring соmрliапсе with estaЫished risk limits. Under the asset investment policy approved Ьу the

resolution оf the Board of Ditectors, the portfolios of financial instruments diversified Ь1, rlpes of assets, degtee of liquidity,
rate of retutn, and term are formed wiй balancing rеtцrп апd risk. Uпdеr the asset investment policy, the Stock Exchange
mопtЫу analyses investment portfolios of the Stock Ехсhапgе, and the Risk Мапаgеmепt Division analyses quarterly Йе state

of investment portfolios апd their exposure to tisks, including determination of the probability оf default under fiпапсiаl
instruments, as well as stress апd back-test of investment portfolios of the Stock Exchange.

Тrапsасtiопs ллith the сепtrаl сонпtефаф

Асппg as а central сочпtе!раrý, Йе Stock Ехсhапgе is also exposed to ctedit risks dче to Йе fact Йаt it assumes the risk of
default оf clearing participants in their obligations and at йе same time guarantees йе fulfiIment оГ Йеir obligations to еасh

Ьопа fide clearing participant. То manage Йе credit risk whеп performing functions оf the сепШаl counte{patty, Йе Stock

Ехсhапgе estaЫishes requirements for the financial condition of clearing participants, fоr йе qpes апd quality of accepted

collateral, which includeý mопеу and liquid securities оf issuers йth а high level оf teliabiliq,, determined in accordance ЙЙ
the Stock Exchange's internal methods. The Stock Exchange has developed and constandy improves ап interna] fating syýtem

that provides а balanced assessment ofits counterpatties and the level ofrisk taken. Countefparties are evaluated оп the basis

of а comprehensive in-depth assessmcnt оf the financial conditions of counterparties, the level оf information transparency,

business reputation and ойеr financial and поп-frпапсiаl Гactors. То mitigate the credit risk associated йth transactions vrhere

йе Stock Ехсhапgе acts as а central counterpart]i, Йе Stock Ехсhапgе has introduced а multilevel cascading collateral pool
structufe йаt complies йй йе international sиndards and consists оf various lines of protection. Credit risk of Йе Stock
Ехсhапgе is minimized Ьу а trading patticipant Ьу payments made Ьу Йе Stock Ехсhапgе in trades based оп а "supply against

Payment|l principle.

ъiпапсiаl dеiuаtiuu

Credit risk associated wiй financial derivatives is at all times limited to positive fair чаlце derivatives that are recognized in
the consolidated statement of Гrпапсiаl position.

IпРаirrпепt

Тhе Group calculates expected credit losses @,CL) to measure the expected cash shortfalls, discounted using effective interest
rate оr ап approximation to it. А cash shortfall is а difference Ьемееп the cash flows that are due to ап entity fоllойпg thc
contfact апd the cash flows йаt the entity expects to receive. The mechanics of the ECL calculationý afe oudincd below апd
the key elements are as follows:

Probability of Default Т\е РпЬаЬiliц of Defmltis an estimate of фе likelihood of default over а given time horizon. А
eD) default mау опlу happen at а certain time over йе assessed period if the asset has not Ьееп

previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio.
Exposure at Default Тhе ЕхРоsuп at Dфult is ап estimate of the exposure at а future default date, taНng into account

@,AD) expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including tepayments оf principal and
interest, whether scheduled Ьу contract or othenvise, expected drawdowns оп committed facilities,
and accrued interest from missed payments.

Loss Given Default The Izrs Сiаеп Dфilt is ап estimate of the loss arising iп the case where default occurs at а givenpGD) 
жiJ::ъ*i::}*;.i:,:";тй?:х"ilJж:il,#:Ё;т:.ff;:,fýlт,*,ffJff:J,тjт,ч,
percentage of фе EAD.

з4
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25. Risk Management Policy (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Notes to the consolidated Financial statements
for the ended 31 December 2023

Il :-,, t

ётов

Iпфаiппепt (сопtiпшd)

For rесеiчаЫеs, the Group applies thе simplified approach рrойdеd Ьу the standard and calculates allowance for ECLs based

on credit losses that are expected to оссчr over the lifecycle of йе asset Qifetime expected credit losses or lifetime ECLs). The
Group has used а provisioning matrix based оп its past credit loss experience adjusted for borrower-specifrc forward-looНng
factors and general economic conditions. Fоr other deЬt financial assets, ECLs are calculated оvеr 72 months. However, if
there has Ьееп а signiГrcant increase in credit risk on а financial instrument since initial recognition, the loss аllочzапсе is

measured at ап amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Dфпitiоп of dфлlt

The Group considers that а default has occurred in relation to amounts due from banks, апd takes immediate measures to

eliminate it if, at the close of the business day, йе necessary intraday payments specified iп separate agteementý have поt been

made.

TreasHry апd iпtеrЬапk rеlаtiопshфs

The Group's treasury telationsЫps comprise relationships йth counterparties, such as financial services institutions, banks,

Ыoker-dealers, exchanges and clearing-houses. То assess such relationsЫps, the Group Credit Risk Department analyses

public information such as fiпапсiаl sиtements and details of other external sources, for example, external tatings.

Тhе Group uses the folloйng credit rating levels:

Rating of extemel iп temationel teting, аgеп су (Fi tch) Reting level dеsсrф tioп Lifetiпe PD
АА+ to ААА

АА
А* to АА-

А-
ВВв+
ввв
ввв-
ВВ+

ВВ- to ВВ
В- to В*
ссс
ссс-

D

High rating

Standard rating

Below standard rating
Impaited

0-2 о/о

2-14%

Maxirпal ctedit itk exPoпtre

The carrying amounts of items in йе consolidated statement of financial position, includiлg derivative instrumentý, excluding
the impact оf risk mitigation from the use of master netting agTeements and collateral affangements, most accurately represent

the maximum expoýufe to credit risk for those items.

For Гrпапсiаl instruments carried at fair value, йeit carrying аmочпt fepresents йе current exposure to credit risk" not the
maximum exposure that mау arise iп фе fчtчrе as а result of changes in value.
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25. Risk Management Policy (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maxiпal credit ilk ефоlнrе (сопtiпuеd)

The folloйng is а classification of the Group's financial assets Ьу credit ratings.

Notes to the consolidated Fiпапсiаl statements
fot thе ended 31 December 2023

(! 'rl
Q.AZAQsT/,lt

Для
отчётов

Ал АА-/л+ ввв ввв- <ввв-
Crcdit tating
поt assigned Total

31 Decembet 2023
Cash and cash equivalents

other thап cash on hand
дmочпts due from banks
Reverse REPO
Investment securities
othcr financial assets

Total

1о6.666.746 25.738 78.911.353 41.09б

60.440.647
48.0з4.785

11.588.365

803.504

185.644.933

72.029.072
66.708.762

803.504
78,673.977

18.6,73.97,7 106.666.746 25.738 187.386.785 7|.629,467 803.504 325.186.211

31 December 2022
Cash and cash equiralents

other thап саsh оп hand
Amounts dче Гrоm banks
Revcrse REPO
Investment sccurities
other financial assets

Total

158.912.580 5.526.216 103.389.812

767.921

35.551.4з5
31.889.2зб

26.695 267.855.303

lб1.927
35.551.435
31.889.236

684.862684.862
158.912.580 5,526.216 710.992.410 26,695 684.862 336.142.763

Liquidity risk

Liquidiry risk is йе risk that the Group йll Ье чпаЫе to meet its pa1тnent obligations whеп they fall due under поrmаl апd

stressed circumstances. То Пmit йis risk, the management ensured йе availability of different funding sources in addition to

the existing minimum amount оf bank deposits. Management also controls assets ЙЙ liquidiq in mind and monitors future

cash flows and liquidity daily, This incorporatcs ап aýsessment of expected cash flows апd the availabiliq, of Ыgh quality

collateral wЫсh could Ье used to secure additional funding if required.

Li q л i di Ц it k tп а п аgе ttl е п t

Дs part of liquidity dsk mапаgеmепt, whеп performing functions оf the сепШаl countcцparty, Йе Group uses the following
instruments: ап overdraft in the foreign схсhапgе mafket оп а cofresponding account йЙ the National Bank of the RерuЫiс
of kazakhstan, пеgо repo ftansactions апd targcted foreign exchange transactions йаt are conditionally called а short-term

currency swap.

Temporarily frее оwп assets оf the Group wеrе placed оп deposits rvith the second-tier banks for а period of по more than

t o |,.rrr. Тhе list of second-tier banks with which thе Group's deposits could Ье placed was regularly feviewed and approved

Ьу the Investment Committee of йс Stock Ехсhапgе,

дt thc same time, the iлvestees that make uP the investment portfol_io are diversified to eliminate the risks of losses arising

from the concentration of financial assets йth the same maturity iп the Group'ý investment portГolio.

Дссоrdiпg to the Grочр's policy, а part оf the amounts due to trading participants are allocated to ЫgЫу liquid fiпапсiаl

instruments, and а part is kept оп correspondent accounts of the stock Ехсhапgе. Liquidity risk occurring in the course ог
stock trading in the foreign ехсhапgе market is minimized Ьу payments mаdе Ьу the Stock Exchange to РаУ net claims оf
trading participants оп а 'ldeПvery versus рауmепt" principle where cash is not transferred to а trading participant violating

thc rчlъi for making ýettlements, but remains оп correýpondent accounts of the stock Ехсhапgе. Moreover, to minimize the

risk оf default in obligations чпdеr term transactions, the participants оf the futures апd options market have formed guafantee

funds, апd the stock Exchange has formed the reserve fund the amounts of wысh are calculated under the internal methods.

зб
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25. Risk Management Policy (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

31 DесепЬеt 2023

Financial Пabilities
Amounts due to clearing participants
Lease liabilities
other financial liabilities

Total Гrпапсiаl Пabшties

(у #t

QA-AQST/;rl
лri;l

отrётов

Uq aidig isk tzапаgеrtлепt (сопtiпшd)

Тhе tаЫе below presents йе Gtoup's financial liabilities as of 31 December Ьу maturity, based on contractual non-discounted
repayment obligations.

Less then 1
,попth

1-3 3-12
rnonths 1-5 yearsIпопths TotaI

284.789.4|2 284.789.472
207.707
158.976

101.595
756.773

284.346.185 25.398 82.3|7 101.595 284.555.495

25.398 80.114
2.203

31 DесепЬеt 2022

Financial liabilities
Amounts due to clearing patticipants
other fi папсiаl liabfities
Total financial liabilities

Less than 1 1-3
,попth Inonths

3-12
Inonths 1-5 years

Morc
than 5
Yеаrý

Nопамitу
date Total

2.20з
312.809.з43

131.489

з12.938.629 2.20з 3|2.940.8з2

Market tisk

Market risk means risks of losses incurred due to changes in market Parameters, including change of interest rates, foreign

ехсhапgе rates, prices for financial instruments йаt йе Group is exposed to, as well as low market liquidit1 due to cost оf
item liquidation, including ореп positions of clearing participants in transactions setdcd wiЙ the central coцnterparty.

То manage the matket risk, the central сочпtе{раrý/ uses sчсh elements of the risk mапаgеmепt system as а system for

determining the risk pшameters of financial instruments, limits for opening positions of clearing participants in certain stock
markets, control of collateral adequacy / mацiп collateral for clearing participants with partial collatetal, сопШоl оf full

coverage оf emerging obligations for clearing pMticipants йth full coverage, revaluation оf the cost оf collateral / mафп
collateial апd net positions оf clearing participants чrith partial collateral, setting requirements for а financial instrument for

admission to tfansactions йth partial collateral.

312,809.343
129.286
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25. Risk Management Policy (continued)

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is а risk оf сhапgе in the value of а financial instrument due to changes in foreign tateS.

Financial position and cash flows of the Gtoup are exposed to the effect оf fluctцations of the foreign ехсhапgе rates.

Тhе following tаЫе shows the currencies in which the Group hаs significant positions as оf 31 December in monetary assets

and liabilities. The analysis perГormed consists in assessing the impact оf а роssiЫе change in exchange rates against the tcnge

оп the consolidated statement of comprehensive iпсоmе (due to the presence of non-trading monetary assets and liabilities

the fair value оf which is sensitive to changes in the ехсhапgе rate). The impact оп equity does not diff* from thе impact оп
the consolidated statement of comprehensive iпсоmе. Negative amounts in the tаЫе reflect а potential net decrease in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive iпсоmе or equit1,, while positive amounts reflect а potential net increase.

2023 2022
EIlect оп prc-tax

iлсоtпе exchange tate, 0%

Сhапgе of Ellect оп pte-tax

стчётов

Сutепсу
Сhапgе of

ехсhапgе tate, О% lпсоlпе

US dollar

Euro

Opetating risk

operating risk is the risk оf loss arising from systems failure, hчmап error, ftaud or external events. ýиhеп controls faii to
perform, operating risks сап cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications, оr lead to financial loss. Тhе
Group cannot exPect to eliminate all operating risks, but а control framework апd monitoring and responding to potential

risks could Ье effective tools to mапаgе йе risks. controls should include effective segrcgation of duties, access, auйorisation
and reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processes. Тhе risks monitored Ьу thе Risk Мапаgеmепt

Division. То епаые йе Group to continue as а going сопсеrп, business continuit1. and recovery policies апd procedures hаvе

Ьееп developed.

26, Fair Yаluе Measurement

Fair value hietarchy

тhе Group uses the fоllойпg hierarchy to measure а fair value оf financial instruments and disclose it subject to йе valuation

model:

> I-evel 1 _ quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities;

> Level 2 - valuation mode]s iп wысh inputs significant for reported fair value are direcdy or indirectly оьsеrvаые in

йе market;

> Level 3 _ valuation models iп wЫсh inputs significant for reponed fair value afe not оЬsеrчаЫе in thе market.

14 о/о

(12и
14 о^

(12и

752.434
(130.658)

6.345
(5.439)

14%
(-11и

14 о^

с110lф

76.609
(60.1 93)

306
(-283)
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26. Fair Vаlче Measurement (continued)

Fоr thе purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group
characteristics and risks ofthe asset or liabifity, and the

Notes to the consolidated Financial statements
for the ended 31 202з

has determined classes of assets and liabilities оп
level iп фе fair

Fait ча]uе
valuc hierarchy.

пеаsutеtпепt using

31 DесепЬеt Д)23
Measuretnent

date Level 1 bvel 2 Level 3 Totaj Fait value

Retaiлed
еаmiпgs /

0оss)

Assets at fait value
Equiq, securities at fair value through othet

comprelrensive iлсоmе
Рrореrq,, plant апd equipment - land, building

transport vehicles

Assets with disclosed fair value

Investment secutities

Liabilities with disclosed fait value

I,eаsе liabilities

31 Decembcr
202з

31 December
202з

31 December
)л)1

З1 December
202з

66.708,762

86.914

21.053 21.053 2i,05з

7.199.?з4 l.|99.2з4 7.799.234

66,708.762 66.751.780 43.018

86.914

Fait value пеаsutеtпепt usiпg itlpttts
Retaiлed

Faitvalue / 4oss)31 DесепЬеr 2022
меаsurеtпелt

date Level 1 Level2 Level3 Tota]

Assets at fair value
Equity securities at fair чаlче thrочф oйet

comprehensive income
Propeny, plant апd equipment - land, building,

transport veыcles

Assets vith disclosed fait value

Investment securities

31 December
2022

31 December
2022

31 Deccmber
2022

21,053

1.106.282

27.05з

l. l 06.282

21.05з

1.106.282

3 1.889.236 з 1.889.236 з1 .916.099 26.86э

з9
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26. Fait Value of Financial Instruments (continued)

Yaluation models and assumptions

тhе following describes thе models and assumptions used to determine йе fair value of assets and liabilities stated at fair

value in the financial statements, as well as items that are not measured at fair value in the consolidated statement of fiпапсiаl

position but whose fair value is disclosed.

АмеЬ aith fair uаhе фРrохitttаtiпg their саtryiпg alllotlпt

For financial assets апd financial liabilities йаt are liquid or have а shott maturity (ess thап йrее months), it is assumed йаt
their Гаir value approximates their саrфпg amount. Tыs assumption also applies to demand deposits апd savings accounts

without а speciГred maturity.

Fiпапсiаl aшett апdfпапсiаl liabilitiet at atnoФiryd cost

тhе fair value of йе listed Ьопds is based оп the quotes at the rcporting date. Тhе fair value of unquoted instruments, amounts

due from credit institutioný, аmочпts dче to clearing patticipants, ойеr financial assets and liabilities is estimated Ьу

discounting future cash flочrs using tates cutrently prevailing for debt with similar conditions, credit risk and maturity.

РrоРеtЦ, Pktt апd еqаiРrпепt - ЬаiИiпgr

The fair value of йе propetties was determined using the mark-to-matket method апd йе discounted cash flоvz mейоd.

Under the mark-to-market method, йе appraiser's valuation is based оп market transaction prices adiusted substantially fot

differences in the natufe, location, or condition ofthe particular property.

under the discounted cash flow mейоd, fair value is measured using assumptions about йе benefits and liabifities associated

with ownersЫP ovef the life оf йе asset. TЫs method involves predicting йе sequence of cash flows ftom йе оwпеrsЫр

interest iп а pioperty. This sequence of proiected cash flочrs is subiect to а discount rate detived from market data, wЫсh

detcrmines the present value of йе income flows associated йй йе asset.

РЦеrЦ, Рlапt апd еquфtпепt- lапd

тhе fair value of properties was determined using thе matk-to-market mейоd. Тhе appraiser's valuation is based оп market

transaction prices adjrrsted substantially for differences in йе natufe, location or condition of the particular ptoperty.

Material non-obsetvable inputs and sensitivity of Level 3 поп-fшапсiаl insttumentý at fair value to changes iп key

assumptions

The following tаые summarizes the sensitivity of the fair value estimates of the Group's buildings categorized in Level 3 оf

the fair value hierarchy to changes in поп-оЬsеrчаЫе inputs as of 31 December 2023:

Non-obsetvable inputs VаIuе Сhапgе of поп-оЬsеrvаЬlе inputs Effect оп fair value

Discount rate 18,87 % +1 о/о

-1%
(32.б01)

37.029

40
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27, Financial Instruments Netting

The tаЫеs below show financial assets offset against

Notes to thе consolidated Financial statements
for йе ended 31

financial liabilities iп the consolidated statement of
апd similar agfeements (ISDA, RISDA апd the like) offset

2023

,'],

QA::AlST/.it

the effects of епfоrсеаЫе mastef netting agfeements
iп the consolidated statement оf financial position

Releted аlпоuпts whose ofbet is
Net fiпапсiаI Net IiлапсiаI поt stated iп the consolidated

aýsets stated jп the liabi]ities stated iп st2telnent of frлепсiаI position I\,Iet аtпоuпt

As of 31 Decetnber 2023

consolideted
stetetnent of

fiпалсiа] position

the consoцdated
statetnent of

frпапсiаl position
FiпапсiаI

iпstutпелts

Received
Iпопеtаtу
coIIatetal

Financial assets

Central counteФafty financial eSsetý

Total

Financial liabilities
Central counteФarty financial liabilities
Total

2.877.636.749
,.б36.

2.877.636,749 (2.8,77

Related aпounts whose offset is
Net liпалсiеl Net frпапсiаl поt stated iп the consolidated

assets steted iп the liabilities stated iп staterneпt of fiпапсiаl роsitiоп Net аtпоuпt

consoЦdated the consoШdated Received
statetnent of staternent of Fiпапсiаl попеtаtу

As of 31 DесеtпЬеt 2022 Iiпапсiаl position Iiпапсiаl position iпstutпепts collateral

Financial assets

Селtrаl countefpafty financial assets

Total

Financial liabilities
Central counterparty financial liabilities

Total

11,769.4s4.576
11.,

(11, 769.454,576) 77.769.454.576
(11.769.454.576\ l|,769.454.516

41
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28, Asýets and Liabilities Maturiry Analysis

The tаЫе ЬеIоvr presents assets and liabilities Ьу expected maturity dates.

31 December 2023

Notes to the consolidated Financial statements
for thе ended 31 202з

/ 1'*:г\| ' -;' "]-''._ ti

чА-АQ;тl.ij
lч-|а

отчётов

31 DесепЬеt 2022

kazakhstan stock

Cash and cash equivalents
Amounts due from credit institutions
Revetse REPO
Central counterpafty Гlпапсiаl assets
Investment securities
Equity securities at fair value йrочgh
other compfehensive income
Investrrrents in associates
Current corporate income tax assets

Deferred corporate iпсоmе tax assets

Ptopetty, plant and equipment
IпtапgiЫе assets

Kght-of-use assets
Prepayments
othet assets
Total

Аmочпts due to clearing participants
central countefParty financial liabilities

Lease liabilities
Cutrent corpofate iпсоmе tax liabilities
Deferred corporate iпсоmе tax liabilities
Advances received
Lease liabilities
ойеr liabilities
Total
Net position

Morc thап than а
Yеаl Total|Yithiп е year а Yеаr Тоtаl lYithin а yeat

185.644.933

72.029.072

2.877.636,749

66.708.762

447.709

21.053

107.289

1.299

2.540,103

1.638.342

150.890

21.05з

125.083

968

1.738.803

7.616.742

21.053

107.289

441.709

1.299

2.540.103

1.638.342

150.890

434,823

1.055.33б

185,644.933

72.029.072

2.877,636.749

66.108.762

267.855.303
1,61.9п

35.55 1.435

11,769.454.576

31.889.236

l l7.314

362.007

815.259

267,855.30з
161.927

35.551.435

11.769.454.576

31.889,236

21.053

125.08з

117,з|4
968

1.738.803

1.676.142

э62.007

815.259
434.823

1.055.ззб

3.203.957.324 4.458.976 з.208.416.з00 12,106.207.05,7 3.502.049 12.109.709.106

284.789.472

2.877.636.749

76.015

213.з73

284.|89.472

2.877.636,749

771.610

2l3.373
365.726

110.840

777.670

488.726

з12.809.з4з
11.769.454.5,76

l 5.1 61

90.876

359.0з4

312.809.343

11.769.454,576

1 5.161

345.эOz

90.876

359.034

101.595

з65.126

86.914

з45.з02

110.840

90.696

488.726

3.162.805.352 554.235 3.163.359.587 |2.о82:728.990 э45.з02 12.08з.014.292

41.751.972 3.904.747 45.056.713 2з.478.067 3156.747 26.6э4.814
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29. Related Party Transactions

Under IAS 24 fulated Раф DiMloMles, parties аrе considered to Ье related if опе of Йеm has the abiliry to

significant influence over the other party in the financial and operating decisions. When deciding whethet
related, the content оf the relationship between йе parties, and not just their legal form, is taken into ассочпt.

Related parties mау enter into transactions фat would not Ье entered into Ьеrwееп unrelated parties. Тhе prices and terms of
such transactions mау differ from йе prices and tetms of transactions ЬеМееп unrelated parties.

Details of transactions between the Group and other related parties аrе disclosed below:

31 DесепЬеt 2023 31 DесепЬеt 2022

; з!)^")а _ i-- _*-
QA!AQsTAi,l

Дэа

^Ie

Раrепt patties
other telated Кеу mапаgеtпепt

рсrsопле1
other rcIated
patties

Кеу папаgепепt
реrsоппеlParcnt

Cash and cash equivalents
Investment securities
Prepar.ments
other assets

Advances received
other liabilities

75.917.226
45.434.296

42.177;78з
з1.656.794

59.689.318

з57.112

1,1.994
1.5з2.31з

The statement of comprehensive income for the years ended 31 December 2023 апd 31 December 2022 included Йе
folloЙng amounts arising from related party transactions.

Yeat епdеd 31 DесеtпЬеr
2023 2022

other related Other related Кеупапаgепепt
Patent рlЦ!! Parent patties реrsоппеl

Ксу папаgепепt
реtsолпеl

Commission and Гее income ъ7.607 434.130 148.699

Intercst iпсоmе
other income
Operating expenses Q7) (137.045) QZ.668)

Тhе remuneration of йе members of key mапаgеmепt perýonnel is reported as follows.

Remuneration to executive body members
Remuneration to governing body
ойеr officials
social tax

Total

239.988

8.323
(242.784)

2023 2022

387.566
57.058
26.203
39.237

211.628
52.652
18.368
23.257

510.058 305.905

30. Events After the Balance Sheet Date

In accordance with the Ехсhапgе Development Strategy fot 2022-2О24, iп, 2024 thе Ехсhапgе continues to work on

transfcrring clcaring activities and centfal counterParty functions to KASE Clearing CentreJSC,

|п 2O24,it is planned to transfer the clearing services of the foreign ехсhапgе market апd derivatives market of the Ехсhапgе

to the Clearing Centre.

Since January 2О24, there has Ьееп а stаЫе strengйening of йе tenge. At йе end of йе first quаrtеr of 2024, the Kazakhstan

tenge Strengthened against the US dollar Ьу 1.1 oh to 446.78 tenge per US dollar.

In Дрril 2О24, the NBRK set the base rate at 14,75 Уо per аппчm .Iп 2О24, the base rate ý/as reduccd from 1 5.75 о/о to 14.7 5 о/О

per аппчm Ьу 100 basis points, it was reviewed inJanuary апd FеЬrчаry.

Аппчаl inflation slowed to 9.t оh iп March 2О24.Iп FеЬrчаry апd March 2024, аппчаl inflation continued to decline, but at а

slower расе. The reduction in inflation is facilitated Ьу moderate monetary policy апd lower worН gtain prices.

Iп January-Febпaty 2024, йе есопоmу оf Kazakhstan grew Ьу 4.2 %. Strong gfowth in economic activity is supported iп

almost all sectors Ьу both domestic and external demand.
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345.247

32.з72
30.911.668


